
Please contact Rachel Graves on 01270 686473
E-Mail: Rachel.graves@cheshireeast.gov.uk with any apologies or requests for further 

information or to give notice of a question to be asked by a member of the public 

Staffing Committee
Agenda

Date: Thursday 24th January 2019
Time: 2.00 pm
Venue: Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields, Middlewich Road, 

Sandbach CW11 1HZ

The agenda is divided into 2 parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and press. 
Part 2 items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the reasons 
indicated on the agenda and at the top of each report.

It should be noted that Part 1 items of Cheshire East Council decision making meetings 
are audio recorded and the recordings are uploaded to the Council’s website.

PART 1 – MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS PRESENT

1. Apologies for Absence  

2. Declarations of Interest  

To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any disclosable 
pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests in any item on the agenda.

3. Public Speaking Time/Open Session  

In accordance with paragraph 2.32 of the Committee Procedural Rules and Appendix 
7 of the Rules a total period of 10 minutes is allocated for members of the public to 
address the Committee on any matter relevant to the work of the body in question.  
 
Individual members of the public may speak for up to 5 minutes but the Chairman will 
decide how the period of time allocated for public speaking will be apportioned where 
there are a number of speakers.
 
Members of the public wishing to ask a question at the meeting should provide at 
least three clear working days’ notice in writing and should include the question with 
that notice. This will enable an informed answer to be given.  It is not required to give 
notice of the intention to make use of public speaking provision, however, as a matter 
of courtesy, a period of 24 hours notice is encouraged.

mailto:Rachel.graves@cheshireeast.gov.uk


4. Minutes of Previous meeting  (Pages 3 - 6)

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 4 October 2018.

5. HR and Health and Safety  - Q3 Update Report  (Pages 7 - 40)

To consider a report on the progress of the Council’s People Plan 2018-20 and on 
Health and Safety, Human Resources and Organisational Development items.

6. Brighter Future Together (Culture) Programme Update  (Pages 41 - 58)

To consider an update on the progress with the Brighter Future Together (Culture) 
Programme and receive a verbal report from Councillor B Moran on the assurance 
meeting held on 7 January 2019.

7. Pay Policy Statement 2019/20  (Pages 59 - 72)

To consider a report on the Pay Policy Statement for 2019/20 and make a 
recommendation to Council for approval and publication.

8. Mutually Agreed Resignation Scheme (MARS) - Review of Programme for June 
2018 Leavers  (Pages 73 - 80)

To consider a report on the outcomes and lessons learnt following the Mutually 
Agreed Resignation Scheme (MARS).

9. Employment Tribunals - Overview of Lessons Learnt  (Pages 81 - 88)

To consider a report on the lessons learnt from six Employment Tribunal claims 
against the Council in the last 12 months.



CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the Staffing Committee
held on Thursday, 4th October, 2018 at Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields, 

Middlewich Road, Sandbach CW11 1HZ

PRESENT

Councillor B Moran (Chairman)
Councillor G Barton (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors G Baggott, Rachel Bailey, M Deakin, D Flude, J Jackson and 
M Parsons

Councillors in attendance
Councillors JP Findlow

Officers in attendance
Kath O’Dwyer, Acting Chief Executive
Sara Barker, Head of Strategic HR
Sarah Allcock, Senior Manager, Workforce Development
Emma Morris, Interim Organisational Development Manager
Nina Lingard, Employment Solicitor
Rachel Graves, Democratic Services Officer

9 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

There were no apologies for absence.

10 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Councillor J Jackson declared that she was a member of GMB and 
Councillor D Flude declared that she was a retired member of UNISON.

11 PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME/OPEN SESSION 

There were no public speakers.

12 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 23 July 2018 be confirmed as a 
correct record.

13 HR AND HEALTH AND SAFETY - Q2 UPDATE REPORT 

The Committee considered a report on the progress with the Council’s 
People Plan 2018/20.



The report provided details on the progress on the areas of work identified 
for the three objectives linked to the Brighter Future Together Whole 
Organisation Transformation Programme:
1. Our Culture – establishing and enabling our workplace vision
2. Our Organisation Development and Delivery
3. Our Employee Experience.

The report also provided details on HR Performance Data for Quarter 2, 
which included headcount and employee turnover, voluntary redundancy 
and working days lost to sickness absence, and also a health and safety 
summary of accident and incidents in July and August 2018.  

The Committee noted that the current level of sickness absence was 4.92 
days’ absence per FTE for quarter 1 and 2.  The Committee, at its next 
meeting, would be considering progress against the Attendance 
Management Action Plan.

There had been a slight increase in the number of leavers in Quarter 2 as 
these figures included those who had left the Council under the MARS 
scheme. The Committee requested that a report be brought to the next 
meeting on the how the MARS scheme went and any lessons learnt from 
undertaking the process.

The Chairman reported that a report would be brought to the next meeting 
on lessons learnt from Employment Tribunals in the last 12 months.

RESOLVED:  That

1 the report be noted; and 

2 reports on the MARS Scheme and Employment Tribunals in the last 
12 months be brought to the meeting of the Staffing Committee in 
January 2019.

14 BRIGHTER FUTURE TOGETHER (CULTURE) PROGRAMME  

The Committee considered a report which provided an update on the 
Brighter Future Together (Culture) Programme,

It was reported that the Brighter Future Together (Culture) Programme 
survey would be delayed by a week to allow staff to attend ‘What’s the 
Conversation’ sessions before completing the survey.

As part of the Committee’s assurance role, Councillor Barry Moran and 
Councillor Dorothy Flude had met on 4 October to consider the 
programme and governance arrangements and had concluded good 
progress was being made. Both Councillors had spoken to staff about 
‘What’s the Conversation’ events and had received positive responses.  
They would meet again in November to further review progress and 



consider how the objectives, outcomes and expected benefits were being 
achieved, with particular reference to how well and effectively it was all 
working for staff.

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted.

15 WELLBEING IN WORK STRATEGY 2018-19 

The Committee considered a report which provided an update on 
Wellbeing in Work.

A Wellbeing in Work Dashboard had been developed to measure the 
success of the programme and set out the annual target for each measure 
in the Wellbeing in Work framework.

A Team Challenge Cup event had taken place in which staff in each 
directorate were encouraged to take part in a variety of activities to get 
points.  The Place Directorate achieved the highest tally of points and had 
won the Cup.

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted.

The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and concluded at 3.20 pm

Councillor B Moran (Chairman)





OFFICIAL

Staffing Committee

Date of Meeting: 24th January 2019

Report Title: HR and Health and Safety – Q3 Update Report

Portfolio Holder: Cllr Paul Findlow - Portfolio Holder for Corporate Policy and 
Legal Services

Senior Officer: Sara Barker, Head of Strategic HR

1. Report Summary

1.1. To update the Committee on the progress of the Council’s People Plan 
2018-20 to include Health and Safety, Human Resources (HR) and 
Organisational Development (OD) items.

1.2. The purpose of the report is to ensure Members are kept up to date with 
HR and OD developments and that the Committee’s Terms of Reference 
are followed.

2. Recommendation/s

2.1. To note the report.

3. Reasons for Recommendation/s

3.1. To ensure Members are kept up to date with HR and OD developments 
and that the Committee’s Terms of Reference are followed.

4. Other Options Considered

4.1. Not applicable.

5. Background

5.1. The Council continues to embed a compelling vision which recognises the 
need for change and looks to a new future. The People Plan 2018-20 
supports the delivery of these plans through three objective areas relating 
to the cultural change element of the



Brighter Future Together Transformation Programme which are 
summarised below;

1. Our Culture – establishing and enabling our workplace vision

2. Our organisational development and delivery

3. Our employee experience

5.2. A copy of the People Plan 2018-20 is attached at Appendix One to this 
report. The plan outlines the priorities being focused on to deliver the three 
objective areas, highlighting the related priorities for the Brighter Future 
Together (Culture) programme. Staffing Committee members are asked to 
note progress.

6. HR POLICY REVIEW

6.1. Work is continuing on the next phase of the policy review which is due 
to be completed by March 2019. Further discussions took place on 5th 
December 2018 with the Trade Unions with regard to Employee Wellbeing 
Policy, Maternity Policy and Procedure, Adoption Policy and Procedure, 
Paternity Leave Policy and Procedure and Ordinary Parental Leave Policy 
and Procedure. A further meeting with the Trade Unions is scheduled for 
30th January 2019. 

6.2. Work is continuing to update the Disciplinary Policy and the Grievance 
Management Guidance and this work will be concluded in January 2019. 

6.3. Further work has been undertaken in respect of the draft Capability policy 
and procedure and this will be shared with the Trade Unions in January 
2019. Amendments have been made to the completion timeline within the 
People Plan 2018-20 to reflect changes in resources and work priorities.  

6.4. The e-learning package developed to support the updated Dignity at Work 
policy continues to be promoted to staff across the Council. As at 12th 
December 2018 completion rates are outlined below;

 Dignity at Work 63%

 Disciplinary Procedure 88% (managers and supervisors)

 Grievance Procedure 74% (managers and supervisors)

Communication with individuals and their managers continues to ensure 
completion of this key training.



6.5. There are a number of managers and employees without access to email or 
e-learning. To meet the needs of these staff and ensure completion of this 
training, key learning summary packs have been shared with managers for 
discussion in team meetings and additional support is scheduled for 
January and February 2019 to disseminate learning to 300 catering staff.      

7. ATTENDANCE MANAGEMENT UPDATE

7.1. The Attendance Management Action Plan is progressing well against 
schedule. An update on the action plan is attached at Appendix Two to this 
report.

7.2. A governance framework has been implemented and forms part of the 
regular information provided to Directorate Management Teams, managers 
and HR representatives as well as to the Corporate Policy and Legal 
Services Portfolio Holder and Staffing Committee. This framework provides 
the basis to enable appropriate monitoring of absence levels in relation to 
the target of 10 days’ absence per FTE in 2018/19. The current level as 
shown in paragraph 11.4 is 7.66 days’ absence per FTE for Quarters One 
to Three.

7.3. There are a range of measures to support managers with attendance 
management which include training sessions for line managers. This 
training will be refreshed to coincide with the launch of the new attendance 
management policy and procedure which is due to take place as part of the 
implementation of the policy and procedure. In addition, HR surgeries, short 
sessions through which to advise managers on key HR topics enabling 
them to apply learning operationally, will be launched in early 2019, 
attendance management will be a key theme for these drop-in events 
across the Council.

7.4. To ensure that the Council’s policies and procedures reflect best practice, 
insight has been gained into the practice of other Local Authorities with a 
view to incorporating some successful initiatives. These include proactive 
well-being initiatives and attendance management procedures to ensure 
confidence that ways of working at the Council remain current and fit for 
purpose.

8. EDUCATION HR CONSULTANCY

8.1. An improved package (including Employee Assistance Programme offer, 
free mediation and Barred List check service) is offered to schools and 
academies for 2018/19 recognising the increasingly competitive market 
within which the Council is offering the buy-back of Education HR 
Consultancy Services.  The buy-back in response to the services offered is 
100 schools and academies for 2018/19.



8.2. A number of new training interventions have been offered aimed at 
increasing income as part of the Governor Training Programme as well 
as specific and focused training.  New and aspiring Headteacher briefings 
have commenced with good uptake and excellent feedback. Further days 
are planned for the remainder of the academic year. Additional courses for 
Governors regarding HR principles and Equality and Diversity, and Safer 
Recruitment accredited training and refreshers for recruiting staff have been 
developed and currently advertised for launch in 2019.

9. APPRENTICESHIPS STATUTORY REPORTING

9.1. As part of the Apprenticeship Levy reforms, the Council is now required 
to report annually to the Department for Education on its progress 
towards meeting a new target introduced by the Government of 180 new 
apprenticeship starts. This total is disaggregated across each area of the 
Council resulting in 96 new apprenticeship starts required across the 
Council and ASDVs and 84 across maintained schools. At the end of 
quarter 3, there have been 91 apprenticeship new starts across the 
Council with a further 13 due to start in Q4.

9.2. The take-up of apprenticeships by maintained schools across 
Cheshire East continues to be slow, despite significant interventions 
which has presented an ongoing challenge in meeting the target number 
of apprenticeships overall across the Council. This is a trend that is 
replicated in Local Authorities across the Country and intervention work 
continues during 2018/19.



10. HEALTH AND SAFETY
10.1. Accident & Incident Summary Data Q3 2018/19 

Total Accidents and Incidents
RIDDOR¹ Reportable 

Accidents

Q2: 2018-19 268 2

Q3: 2018-19 849 4

Council RIDDOR1 Schools RIDDOR

467 2 382 2

10.2 Accident & Incident September – December 2018 Summary

Council Employees 
(average

head count): 3565

Schools Employees 
(average head count):

3554
Accidents Employees 56 73

Average Accident Rate
Factor (Employees)

5.3% 7.3%

²MOTP 292 258

Incidents Employees                     32                     11

MOTP 87                     51

A&I Total 467 382

Council Schools

RIDDOR Employees 2 2

MOTP 0 0

RIDDOR
Total

2 2

The first RIDDOR reportable accident in the Council involved a member of staff who 
was absent from work for more than 7 days due to spraining their ankle whilst at work 
on a cobbled surface. The second involved a member of staff who was working in the 
community when they fell and fractured their wrist.

The first RIDDOR reportable accident in the schools involved a member of staff 
trapping their hand in a gate, sustaining a fractured thumb resulting in an absence of 
more than 7 days. The second involved a member of staff who tripped in the 
playground and sustained a broken wrist.

There were no accidents or incidents involving the HSE in the period September-
December 2018.

¹ RIDDOR – The Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrence Regulations

² MOTP – Members of the Public



10.3 Corporate Health and Safety Training Programme

10 courses were delivered to CEC and School staff during Quarter 3 2018/19 

NO. OF
COURSES

COURSE ATTENDEES

1 Defibrillator Annual Refresher/Training Session for 
Corporate First Aiders (2 hours)

12 
Council

1 Basic First Aid (3 hours) 13 School

1 First Aid at Work (3 days) 8 Council
2 School

2 Emergency First Aid at Work (1 day) 9 Council
15 School

1 First Aid at Work Re-qualification (2 days) 9 Council
3 School

1 IOSH Managing Safely Refresher (1 day) 3 Council

1 IOSH Leading Safely (6 hours) 6 School

1 PRIME Accident Reporting Course (3 hours) 7 Council
9 School

1 Caretaker’s Course 14 School

10
TOTALS

48 Council
62 School
110 Total



11. HR PERFORMANCE DATA – Q3 2018/19

11.1 Headcount & FTE (Excluding schools, agency workers and casuals)

Date Headcount
Change 
from 
Previous 
Year (%)

Change from 
previous year 
(excluding 
ASDV TUPE
Transfers) (%)

FTE
Change 

from 
Previous 
Year (%)

Change from 
previous year 
(excluding 
ASDV TUPE
Transfers (%)

30 Apr 2012 5,449 -7.01 NA 4080.2 -6.96 NA
30 Apr 2013 5,103 -6.35 NA 3880.7 -4.89 NA
30 Apr 2014 4,403 -13.72 -6.87 3232.7 -16.70 -8.28
30 Apr 2015 3,812 -13.42 -1.01 2883.5 -10.80 -0.19
30 Apr 2016 3,763 -1.29 -0.74 2891.7 0.28 1.02
30 Apr 2017 3,623 -3.72 NA 2835.3 -1.95 NA
30 Apr 2018 3,587 -0.99 NA 2824.5 -0.38 NA

31 Dec 2018 3,569 NA NA 2769.0 NA NA

Between April 2012 and December 2018, the overall Council employee 
headcount has reduced by 34.5% and the overall number of Council FTE 
employees has decreased by 32.1%. Between April 2014 and December 2018, 
the overall Council employee headcount reduced by 18.9% and the overall 
number of Council FTE employees decreased by 14.3% over the same 
period. As described previously, the larger reductions in staffing between both 
2013-14 and 2014-15 include staff TUPE transferring to ASDVs. Between 
April 2018 and December 2018, the overall Council employee headcount 
has reduced by 0.5%, with the number of FTE employees also decreasing by 
2% over the same period.

11.2 Leavers & Turnover (Excluding schools, agency workers and 
casuals)

Financial Year
Overall 

Headcount 
of Leavers

Overall 
Employee 

Turnover (%)

Headcount of 
Leavers without 
TUPE Transfers

Turnover without 
TUPE Transfers 

(%)
2009-10 838 13.2 838 13.2
2010-11 931 15.5 931 15.5
2011-12 830 14.7 830 14.7
2012-13 657 12.5 657 12.5
2013-14 1019 21.4 650 13.7
2014-15 1030 25.1 506 12.3
2015-16 566 14.9 545 14.4
2016-17 458 12.3 458 12.3
2017-18 402 11.1 391 10.8

Q3 2017-18 305 8.4 294 8.1
Q3 2018-19 313 8.7 300 8.4



The table above provides the number of leavers between April and 
December 2018, including those who TUPE transferred to ASDVs. The total 
employee turnover rate is 8.7% during this period which is higher than during 
quarter three 2017/18. This was expected in the current financial year, given 
the increase in leavers during the first quarter as a result of the Mutually 
Agreed Resignation Scheme. If TUPE transfers are analysed separately there 
have been 300 leavers due to other reasons which are summarised below. The 
turnover rate for all other leaving reasons is 8.4%.

There were 222 resignations during the reporting period, 28 of which were due 
to MARS applications. The turnover rate due to resignation is 6.2% which is 
higher than the same time last year.

Financial Year Resignation 
Headcount

Employee 
Turnover by 

Resignation (%)
2009-10 390 6.2
2010-11 362 6.0
2011-12 307 5.4
2012-13 324 6.1
2013-14 354 7.4
2014-15 301 7.3
2015-16 305 8.1
2016-17 311 8.4
2017-18 287 8.0

Q3 2017-18 213 5.9
Q3 2018-19 222 6.2

The distribution of leaving reasons is shown below, with the exception of 
TUPE transfers. The ‘Unsatisfactory’ category captures those who left due 
to unsatisfactory probation or performance, gross misconduct, or disciplinary 
action. ‘Other’ reflects mutual termination, death in service and other reasons.

Leaving Reason Headcount Proportion of all Leavers (%)
Resignation

(including MARS)
    222 70.9

Retirement 36                       11.5
Redundancy 17 5.4

End of Contract 8 2.6
Unsatisfactory 6 1.9

Other               11 3.7

OFFICIAL
9



11.3 Redundancy

18 people have left the Council under voluntary redundancy terms between 1st April 
and 31st December 2018 with one leaving under compulsory redundancy terms. The total 
severance cost was £762,830 inclusive of redundancy and actuarial costs which will 
be recouped within two years with ongoing savings after this period.

Year Number of voluntary 
redundancies

Number of compulsory 
redundancies

2009-2010 280 0

2010-2011 399 0

2011-2012 264 4

2012-2013 94 2

2013-2014 124 4

2014-2015 30 0

2015-2016 98 1

2016-2017 22 1

2017-2018 22 1

April – Dec 2018 18 1

11.4 BVPI 12: Days Lost to Sickness Absence per FTE Employee

Financial Year Cumulative Absence 
at the end of Q3 Full Year Absence Rate

2011-12 8.3 11.67
2012-13 9.07 12.03
2013-14 8.34 11.33
2014-15 8.87 11.97
2015-16 8.02 11.14
2016-17 8.32 11.14
2017-18 8.31 11.18

Q3 2017-18 8.31 NA
Q3 2018-19 7.66 NA

The table above shows the cumulative absence rate for Cheshire East Council from 
April 2018 to December 2018. The current figure of 7.66 days lost per FTE employee is 
lower than the figure for the same period over the preceding seven financial years which 
may indicate a positive trend towards absence targets. This is especially noticeable for 
the current reporting period given that absence was higher at the end of the second 
quarter this year than in 2017/18, yet the position is reversed at the end of the third 
quarter.



12.5 HR Casework

The HR Team continues to work with managers to resolve concerns at the 
earliest opportunity. Where these cannot be resolved, formal procedures are 
used to seek outcomes to concerns raised. The table below sets out those 
cases that were considered through HR formal procedures. There has been 
one member appeal during the period September to December 2018.

Summary of current formal case work by employee

Capability Disciplinary Grievance Dignity
at Work ET

As at May 2016 4 2 3 1 1

As at Sept 2016 4 0 1 1 1

As at Dec 2016 4 6 6 1 0

As at March 2017 6 4 6 1 0

As at May 2017 6 6 7 2 1

As at Sept 2017 4 4 8 0 2

As at Dec 2017 4 6 6 1 3

As at March 2018 0 8 7 1 4

As at May 2018 0 6 6 0 3

As at Aug 2018 1 6 8 2 2

As at Dec 2018 1 2 3 1 2

Summary of closed formal case work during period by employee

Capability Disciplinary Grievance Dignity
at Work ET

June – Sept 2017 3 5 5 1 0

Oct – Dec 2017 0 3 5 0 0

Jan – Mar 2018 0 4 5 0 0

April – May 2018 0 5 1 1 1

June – August 2018 0 4 2 0 1

Sept – Dec 2018 0 9 7 5 1

                                                                                          OFFICIAL
11



Closed cases September - December 2018

Type of Case Information/Length of Case
Capability No cases concluded
Disciplinary 1x2wks; 1x3wks; 1x4wks; 1x8wks; 1x9wks; 3x11wks; 

1x14wks 
Grievance 3x14wks; 1x4mths; 1x6mths; 1x10mths; 1x11mths
Dignity at Work 1x5wks; 1x8wks; 1x11wks; 1x15wks; 1x16wks
ET¹ Settled prior to hearing in December 2018

With reference to the table above, casework matters are dealt with in as timely a manner 
as possible. There can be unavoidable slippage of time due to factors such as the 
general availability of the parties involved; for example, complainant, officers, trade union 
representatives as well as investigating officers. Longer term delays can be due to 
sickness absence. In respect of the grievance cases taking longest to conclude, the 
cases which took 10 and 11 months to conclude were delayed due to long term sickness.

Summary of new formal case work during period by employee

Capability Disciplinary Grievance Dignity
at Work ET

June – Sept 2017 0 3 6 0 1

Oct – Dec 2017 0 5 3 1 2

Jan – Mar 2018 0 3 2 0 0

April – May 2018 0 3 2 0 0

June - Aug 2018 1 4 4 2 0

Sept – Dec 2018 0            5 2 4 1

1ET - Employment Tribunal

13. Implications of the Recommendations

13.1 Legal Implications

13.1.1. Activity relating to the summaries in this report contributes to ensuring the 
Council’s statutory HR and Health and Safety obligations are met.

13.2 Financial Implications

13.2.1 No direct financial implications arising from this report.

13.3 Equality Implications

13.3.1 There are no direct equality implications.

13.4 Human Resources Implications

13.4.1 Implications are dealt with in the body of the report.



13.5 Risk Management Implications

13.5.1 No significant risks identified as a result of this update report. Risks 
relating to specific matters are dealt with separately.

13.6 Rural Communities Implications

13.6.1 There are no direct implications for rural communities.

13.7 Implications for Children & Young People/Cared for Children

13.7.1 There are no direct implications for children and young people.

13.8 Public Health Implications

13.8.1 There are no direct implications for public health.

14 Ward Members Affected

14.8 No specific wards affected.

15  Access to Information

15.1 The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting 
the report writer.

16. Contact Information

16.1 Any  questions  relating  to  this  report  should  be  directed  to  the  following 
officer:

Name: Sara Barker 

Designation: Head of Strategic HR

Email: sara.barker@cheshireeast.gov.uk

mailto:sara.barker@cheshireeast.gov.uk


OFFICIAL

Appendix 1

Working for a Brighter Future – Together



OFFICIAL

The Council has developed a new and compelling vision and narrative which recognises the need for change and looks to a new future.

In order to meet the challenge of delivering our corporate objectives, within a testing financial environment, recognising the expectations of communities 
and residents regarding meeting their needs and supporting their aspirations, we need to maintain high quality, responsive services through ensuring staff 
are innovative, motivated and valued. Our responsibilities to work collectively across service areas, with partners and to empower communities in their 
own success have never been greater and our approach must equip our staff in their capability, capacity and confidence to deliver positive outcomes.

We will;

 Celebrate the diverse and distinctive places and communities in the borough, working with them to achieve their hopes and aspirations
 Be led by strong and responsible leadership who are committed to public service and rooted in their communities
 Have valued staff who are proud ambassadors for the council
 Reach out to our staff, communities, stakeholders and partners, listen to what they say and act accordingly
 Be a business-like, financially independent council which enables residents and communities to become more self-sufficient
 Take decisions for the long-term, investing in the future and responding to changing circumstances

The People Plan Objectives and Outcomes

Our vision firmly places our workforce at the centre, acknowledging our staff as our greatest asset and recognising the employee experience as essential to 
our success. The purpose of the People Plan is to support the delivery of the Council’s transformation through the Brighter Future Together Brighter Future 
Together Transformation Programme with a specific focus on culture. This is a two year plan in recognition of the work and time required to meaningfully 
embed such a comprehensive cultural change. The priorities outlined and required outcomes are aligned with the employee lifecycle;



OFFICIAL



OFFICIAL

Brighter Future Culture Programme Outcomes

People say they are proud to work for Cheshire East Council
1. Our people feel valued, trusted and supported and understand the vision of the organisation and the part they play in achieving it
2. All staff and members are even more aligned and accountable, acting on objectives and results and consistently role model the desired 

behaviours and delivers the vision for the organisational culture
3. All employees feel they can provide feedback, influence and feel they have their voice heard within Cheshire East Council
4. Our people are led by those who have the capabilities to build capacity and confidence to deliver high performing culture in a fair and 

consistent manner.
5. Cheshire East Council becomes an employer of choice
6. Members and officers have a shared belief attitude and value and create a supportive and safe environment in which all can excel

By 2020, the delivery of actions relating to these priorities will result in embedded behaviours, a positive culture based on shared values, a fair deal 
for employees at all levels including clarity of expectations and opportunities to develop and progress and therefore delivery of high quality services 
for our residents.

To achieve this, three broad objective areas form the basis of the People Plan for 2018-2020, which underpins the Brighter Future Together Brighter 
Future TogetherTransformation Programme and contributes directly through a programme of culture change;

1. Our culture – establishing and enabling our workplace vision
2. Our organisational development and delivery
3. Our employee experience

This document outlines the priorities within each objective and the measures against which progress and outcomes will be monitored. As the Brighter 
Future Together Brighter Future Together Transformation Programme progresses the objectives, priorities and milestones may change in response to 
feedback from staff and the programme developing. Throughout the document, the initials ‘BF’ in the left hand column denote the objective relates to 
distinct enabling projects in the Brighter Future Together (Culture) Programme.



OFFICIAL

Progress key: Completed/On schedule/Behind schedule

1. Our Culture – establishing and enabling our workplace vision

Objective Owner Key
Milestones

Performance Measures Progress

A

B

To identify and articulate a clear 
and compelling vision and tone 
for a transformed workplace 
culture in Cheshire East Council. 
To inform, involve and engage 
staff and members in the 
development and 
implementation of the cultural 
vision, behaviours and 
employee deal.

Head of 
Strategic 
HR

Head of 
Strategic 
HR

July 2018

April 2018

June to 
November 2018

 Cultural vision and tone defined
 Cultural measures/goals defined
 Cultural vision communicated

 Communications strategy agreed
 BFTT forums and Member 

Forums run
 Starting the conversation 

workshops completed
 Starting the conversation survey 

run and analysed
 Brighter Future Champions in 

place and trained
 Brighter Future workshops run

 Complete

 Complete

 Complete

C To develop a fit for purpose 
behavioural framework that 
aligns behaviours to the 
Cheshire East cultural vision and 
FIRST values that are  
embedded into the 
organisational DNA.

Head of 
Strategic 
HR

July 2018

December 2018

March 2020

 Behavioural framework agreed

 Framework implemented

 Framework implemented

 Complete

 Embedding continues 
through launch of Toolkit 
and integration within all 
policies and processes

D To identify and deliver a new 
Employee Deal which clearly 

Head of 
Strategic 

July 2018  Employee Deal agreed  Complete



OFFICIAL

links to the Cheshire East Vision 
and the FIRST Values and 
Behavioural Framework.

HR December 2018

March 2020

 Employee Deal implemented

 Employee Deal embedded

 Embedding continues 
through launch of Toolkits 
and integration within all 
policies and processes

E To foster a community of 
Elected members who 
understand the vision and how 
best they will support their 
Council officers to deliver the 
best for their residents.

Head of 
Strategic 
HR/ Head 
of Dem 
Services

May 2018

Ongoing

March 2019

 Member Forum

 Member Development 
programme designed

 Member Development 
programme delivered

 Member forum in place, 
meeting on a monthly 
basis

 Work in progress to 
develop a conversation 
intervention with 
members to socialise and 
embed the behaviours

 A Conversation session 
for all members, sessions 
held in November and 
December 2018 with 
further sessions 
scheduled for January 
2019

F To deliver a leadership 
community to have the 
knowledge and skills to 
constantly and consistently role 
model the behaviours and the 
capacity and confidence to 
address performance and 
behaviour.

WFD 
Manager

March 2019

March 2019

 WLT and WLC programme

 Brighter Future manager’s core 
training completed

 WLT and WLC programme 
in place

 Brighter Future manager’s 
core training scheduled to 
run from January 2019 
across the organisation

G To develop and implement a 
range of survey mechanisms to 
monitor and measure the 
required cultural change and 
programme outcomes.

OD 
Manager

June 2018

October 2018
February 2019
June 2019

 Approach to staff survey and 
temperature testing agreed

 Temperature test run
 Further temperature test planned 
 Framework of measures agreed 

and implemented

 First Temperature Test to 
assess awareness of the 
Brighter Future 
Programme was 
encouraging. Results 
shared with staff via 



OFFICIAL

Team Voice and reported 
to Staffing Committee

 Work progressing to 
create a dashboard of 
measures. First draft 
shared with Steering 
Group and further work 
progresses to develop a 
scorecard within the 
CorVu system which is 
expected to be complete 
by end of December 2018

H To develop a framework of 
cultural principles and 
supporting toolkit to inform and 
align the Brighter Future 
Together Brighter Future 
Together Transformation 
Programme

Head of 
Strategic 
HR

October 2018

February 2019

 Cultural principles defined
 “Culture Check” toolkit/ 

mechanisms in place
 Training if required

 Vision, values and 
behaviours now in place. 
Complete.

 Work in progress to 
create a Transformation 
Toolkit. First draft 
expected end of February 
2019



OFFICIAL

2. Our Organisational Development and Delivery

Objective Owner Key
Milestones

Performance Measures Progress

To implement the new NJC pay 
spine and associated work and 
establish/ address any 
implications for senior manager 
pay.

HR Policy/ 
Strategy

March 2019  NJC pay spine implemented
 Gender Pay Gap report
 Scoping for the way forward 

regarding PRP for senior 
managers

 Work underway to 
develop NJC Pay Spine. 
External pay consultant 
has started work on NJC 
pay. Joint Working Group 
with Trade Unions 
established with 
consultation ongoing

 Options paper in 
development 

To undertake statutory pay 
reporting requirements.

HR Policy/ 
Strategy

March 2019  Gender Pay Gap
 Pay Policy Statement 2019/20
 Transparency code 

requirements

 Pay Policy Statement 
developed and on 
Staffing Committee 
agenda for January 2019

BF To progress the review of HR 
policies and procedures and 
determine the impact of best 
practice and legislative 
developments.

HR Policy/ 
Strategy

March 2019  Phase 2 policy review complete 
 Phase 3 policy review complete
 Phase 4 policy review complete
 Impact implications determined

 Work continues and 
scheduled for completion 
by March 2019

BF To review and promote the 
range of employee benefits and 
salary sacrifice schemes to 
support the employee deal and 
ensure efficient and effective 
usage.

HR Strategy March 2019  Take up of schemes
 Usage of Employee Assistance 

Programme

 Items included in Team 
Voice

 Review of Salary Sacrifice 
Car scheme nearing 
completion 



OFFICIAL

BF To undertake an end to end 
review of the Council’s 
recruitment process and any 
Business World interface work 
to ensure recruitment time is 
kept to a minimum and aligned 
with our cultural vision, values 
and behaviours.

Workforce 
Development/ 
Policy and 
Strategy

January 2019

January 2019

March 2019

 New system implemented 
(Business World interface)

 Recruitment policy and 
procedure implemented

 Toolkits, standards, procedure, 
e-learning etc. in place aligned 
with behaviours

 Introduce KPIs for recruitment
 Positive feedback received from 

managers

 Review completed and 
policy review underway

 New system launched 
and Cheshire East 
Templates in place

 Redesign of recruitment 
pages of Cheshire East 
Council website 
underway

 Toolkit and e-learning to 
be developed and  
aligned to new 
behaviours

BF To provide a clear induction 
programme for all staff.

WFD Manager December 2018

March 2019

 Programme refreshed, in place 
and communicated

 % of new staff enrolled onto 
induction programmes

 % of new staff completing 
induction programme

 Feedback on induction process

 New programme in 
development

 Design of e-learning 
pathways underway, 
creation and launch 
dependent on new LMS 
being in place

BF To review the current appraisal 
process to consider in 
particular the inclusion of 360-
degree feedback.

WFD 
Manager/ OD 
Manager

October 2018

Ongoing

 Review of current and best 
practice completed

 New oracle replacement system 
and toolkit in place

 360 approach and tools in place
 Number of appraisals initiated, 

reviewed and completed
 Number of 360 undertaken
 Reported impact of appraisal 

system on organisation 
objective achievement and 
personal development

 Review completed
 New process taken to 

Steering Group and 
actions in progress

 Oracle replacement 
system in commissioning 
process, contract 
awarding delayed due to 
BW cross-overs.



OFFICIAL

 Training and development 
requirements fed into WFD 
planning

To continue to promote the 
apprenticeship levy across the 
Council, ASDVs and maintained 
schools and encourage the 
uptake of apprentices.

WFD Manager Sept 2018
Ongoing

Ongoing

 Statutory report submitted
 Number of apprentices across 

the organisation
 Levy spend by services, schools 

and ASDVs

 Statutory report 
submitted. Complete.

 91 new apprenticeship 
starts in 2018/19 as of 
10th December with a 
further 13 due to start in 
Q4

To identify and address skills 
gaps regarding required skills 
for job roles against 
professional standards. Carry 
out a skills audit to gain 
knowledge of baseline position 
from which to develop skills 
and behaviours across the 
organisation. 

WFD Manager March 2019  % rate for skills audit 
completion – maturity matrix

 Overall % rate for training 
budgets v training 
commissioned

 CPD panel approvals
 Completion of mandatory e-

learning
 Value added through evaluation 

and impact assessment of all 
training

 Apprenticeship uptake

 Maturity matrices 
received from across 
services, actions plans 
shared with team 
managers

 76% training budgets 
spent

 70% of returned training 
plans commissioned

 31 CPD panel approvals
 91 new apprenticeship 

starts in CEC, ASDVs and 
schools, 13 more to start 
in Q4

BF To improve retention and 
succession planning through 
offering career opportunities 
and progression. Use of skills 
gaps information to support 
tailored opportunities. 

WFD Manager Ongoing  Apprenticeship uptake
 Number of career pathways in 

place
 Number of student placements 

in place
 Number of graduate 

opportunities taken up
 Take up of leadership and 

 91 new apprenticeship 
starts in CEC, ASDVs and 
schools up to Q3

 15 ASYEs in Children’s 
social care previously 
undertook work 
placements at CEC

 4 graduate management 



OFFICIAL

management training
 Talent identification strategy in 

toolkit, in line with PDR process 
in place 

candidates in Adult Social 
Care

 PDR process includes 
initial staff performance 
indications which will 
lead to talent 
development

BF To carry out an analysis of 
stress related sickness and 
bullying related to 
disciplinary/grievance cases in 
order to identify trends and 
target actions and support. To 
introduce a target for the 
number of cases – these may 
increase initially. 

HR Delivery September 2018  Attendance Managers action 
plan agreed 

 To meet the incoming target

 Top 5 reasons for 
absence is reported to 
CLT and DMTs in the 
Workforce Data packs

 Reporting on length of 
time taken to conclude 
formal disciplinary and 
grievance cases 

 Complete. 

BF To review the exit interview 
process and encourage all 
managers and supervisors to 
carry out an exit interview for 
all staff who leave the Council. 

OD Manager
HR Delivery 
Manager

December 2018  In line with the introduction of 
Business World

 To increase the % of interviews 
completed

 Findings analysed and reported 
quarterly

 Initial discussions and 
review taken place

 Implementation reliant 
on B4B

 Researching alternative 
methods to be used in 
the interim

Seek to develop new income 
opportunities for Education HR 
and Health and Safety including 
possible collaboration with 
other Authorities/agencies. 

Education HR 
Manager/ 
Health and 
Safety 
Manager

Ongoing  Seek to maximise customer 
base and minimise losses

 Full cost recovery

 Currently seeking 
opportunities to develop 
income generation and 
joint working with other 
LAs and schools

Develop bespoke offers for Education HR Ongoing  Seek to maintain existing MAT  Improved offer for 



OFFICIAL

Multi-Academy Trusts aimed at 
retaining business. 

Manager business and retain any newly 
established MATs.

2018/19 which includes 
free mediation, barred 
list check and EAP & 
sliding scale of cost 
reduction introduced 
bases on number of 
Academies in the Trust

Develop further additional 
training sessions/ briefings to 
include new subject areas for 
schools/ academies and 
Governors. 

Education HR 
Manager

Ongoing  Increase number of courses/ 
sessions/ briefings delivered to 
maintain additional income 
generation levels

 Additional Governor 
training courses re 
Equality and Diversity 
and HR role for 
Governors in place for 
Autumn and Spring 
terms

 Updated Head Teacher/ 
Governor training in 
place

 Further accreditation 
Safer Recruitment 
training for Head 
Teachers/ Governors

 Accredited Safer 
Recruitment planned for 
2019

 Introduction of new 
breakfast briefings for 
New and Aspiring Head 
Teachers starting in 
Autumn 2018 through to 
Summer 2019. Excellent 
feedback received from 
the first session

Support schools/ academies Education HR Ongoing  Completed successful  Ongoing – likely to be 



OFFICIAL

with change management/ 
restructuring in the light of 
budgetary constraints.

Manager restructures increase in number as 
schools review 19/20 budget

To work with Executive 
Directors, Senior Management 
Teams and other staff to;

- Identify business 
requirements for 
2018/20

- Provide a clear offer of 
support to the business

- Collaboratively work 
together to fulfil the 
agreed KPIs for HR and 
delivery of corporate 
and service scorecard 
with KPIs

Head of 
Strategic HR/ 
HRBP 
Delivery/ 
HRBP Schools 
Consultancy

Ongoing  Numbers of working days lost 
to sickness absence

 PDR targets for completion 
achieved

 HR Provides robust and ‘critical 
friend’ advice and support to 
managers to adhere to 
timescales and appropriate 
actions

 Provision of monthly 
performance data and analysis 
to all Directorate Management 
teams

 Development and delivery of 
flexible suite of manager 
courses throughout the year 
(with responsive ad hoc 
provision as required)

 Delivery and implementation of 
project plans eg. Change 
programmes

 Investigator training for 
managers

 6.58 days lost wef 31.10.18. On a 
rolling year the figure is 11.02 
compared to a target of 10 days

 Work ongoing to define support 
required for Brighter Future 
Transformation Programme

 Ongoing work with managers to 
ensure reviews are on schedule as 
part of HR surgery plans

 Ongoing work with managers 
including first line supervisors 
across the organisation

 Ongoing work with managers. 
Ongoing support and guidance to 
deliver MTFS savings through 
service redesign and restructure

 Monthly management information 
established, Senior HR Officers 
providing in depth analysis at DMTs 
and other management meetings

 HR sessions have taken place in 
respect of the principles of 
managing attendance, further HR 
surgeries to take place throughout 
2019

 Training workshops scheduled to 
support key HR initiatives being 
refreshed as revised policies are 
launched

 Completed for individual 
programmes. Provider of 
investigator training identified and 
arranged for 2019



OFFICIAL

3. Our Employee Experience

Objective Owner Key 
Milestones

Performance Measures Progress

BF For all staff to be involved in 
the further development and 
delivery of an employee 
engagement programme. 

OD Manager January 2019

March 2019

Ongoing

 Review and align engagement 
plan to transformation 
programme

 Attendance at engagement 
events

 Feedback
 Creative mechanisms in place
 Support and alignment with 

Directorate engagement events

 Programme review and 
alignment in progress to 
incorporate the Vision for 
Workplace Culture, 
Refreshed Behaviours and 
Employee Deal 

BF For all staff to have access to a 
programme of wellbeing in 
work initiatives to build their 
team and individual resilience. 
Review plan in associated with 
E&D strategy and resilience 
training offer. 

OD Manager Ongoing  Review, align and further 
develop strategy and plan for 
18/19

 Number of staff generated 
initiatives

 Number of resilience training 
sessions held and attended

 Strategy and plan aligned 
and agreed for 2018/19

 Created Wellbeing in 
Work Dashboard of 
Measures

BF For all staff to have access to 
an independent helpline 
where they can raise concerns 
about bullying or 
inappropriate behaviour.

OD Manager/ 
HR Delivery 
Manager

September 2019  Approach agreed and 
implemented

 Number of calls made
 Number of grievances/ 

whistleblowing made & 
resolved

 A dedicated helpline to 
provide support to those 
employees experiencing 
inappropriate behaviour 
went live 6/8/18. The 
helpline is called Stop 
Bullying Behaviour and is 
provided by Workplace 
Wellness

BF For staff to feel more valued 
through a re-developed 
recognition programme. 

OD Manager Ongoing  Review and improve schemes
 % increase in nominations

 Review of mobile enabled 
recognition scheme 
undertaken. 



OFFICIAL

Recommendations to the 
Brighter Future Steering 
Group were agreed in 
principle at the end of 
September. Work in 
progress to agree 
procurement 
arrangements.

For staff to benefit from a fully 
flexible Occupational Health 
service.

H&S Manager Ongoing  KPIs met  Regular meetings take 
place to review the OHU 
service, to monitor KPI 
compliance and to 
address service 
improvements

For all staff to benefit from an 
organisation that places the 
health and safety of their staff 
at the highest priority.

H&S Manager Ongoing  Number of days lost due to 
sickness absence due to 
accidents

 All accidents which incur 
sickness absence are 
reviewed by the H&S 
team and investigated as 
necessary. The H&S team 
provide valuable input 
into the Wellbeing at 
Work programme





Attendance Management 2018/2019 – Action Plan Appendix 2

OFFICIAL

Key: Completed/ On schedule/ Behind Schedule

Headline Action Timescale Owner Update 
Policy Review attendance 

and wellbeing policy
March 2019 HR Policy 

Manager/ 
HR 
Business 
Partner 
(HRBP)

Completed. The Wellbeing Strategy has been agreed and workplace 
initiatives have been developed to underpin wellbeing (reported to 
Staffing Committee in October 2018.) Wellbeing relates to all aspects of 
working life, from the quality and safety of the physical environment, to how 
workers feel about their work, their working environment and culture along 
with the way they are managed and led.  

Best practice from other organisations, including local authorities has been 
sought to inform our approach. In addition, ACAS guidance has been 
reflected to ensure future policy meets requisite standards and legislative 
requirements.

Ongoing. The attendance management and wellbeing policies have been 
reviewed and are currently subject to consultation prior to approval. The 
attendance management/wellbeing training package will be revised to reflect 
any policy changes.

Governance Implement a 
governance 
framework to ensure 
effective attendance 
management

April 2018 Head of 
HR/HRBP 

Completed. A governance framework has been established and regular 
information is scrutinised at Directorate Management Teams line managers 
and HR representatives. Regular reports are provided to the Corporate 
Leadership Team and Staffing Committee.

Monitoring 
and 
Compliance

Monitoring 
and 

Set targets for 
absence levels

Management 
information at 
strategic and 
operational level 

Ensure adherence to 
attendance 

Annually 

March 2018

On-going 

CLT

HR Delivery 

Director / 
Head of 
Service/ HR

Completed. This has been set at 10 working days per FTE. 

Completed. Monthly reporting in place as part of governance arrangements.

Completed. On-going monitoring via Directorate and Service meetings and 
one to one support for individual cases.  



Attendance Management 2018/2019 – Action Plan Appendix 2

OFFICIAL

compliance  
(continued) 

management 
procedure by 
managers 

Performance targets 
for Occupational 
Health; trends in 
respect of referrals 
identified to focus 
HR support 

Quarterly 
H&S 
Manager / 
HRBP

Completed. H&S manager meets regularly with service provider (PAM) to 
review quality of service provision, trends and to address future interventions.

Support for 
Managers

Support for 
Managers 
(continued)

Attendance 
management 
remains a key 
objective on PDRs 
for all senior 
managers

Development and 
training of line 
managers to 
increase awareness 
of attendance policy 
and develop skills to 
increase people 
management skills

Understand potential 
barriers to managing 
absence

Share good practice 
between managers 

April 2018 

May 2019 

May 2018

CLT/DMT/ 

HRBP / 
OD 
Manager

HRBP / OD 
Manager

HRBP /OD 

Completed. Communications sent to managers via Directorate Management 
Teams/other management meetings as well as in Team Voice. 
Communication reinforced by Chief Executive at Wider Leadership Team 
events.

Ongoing. Skills Audit of all managers is being used to assess skills and has 
informed the leadership and management development programme. All 
managers are attending ‘Having the conversation’ sessions as part of the 
Brighter Future Programme to develop people management skills.  Bespoke 
attendance management training sessions are delivered to line managers.

In addition, the introduction of HR surgeries in early 2019 will focus on key 
HR topics for managers and will include attendance management. 

Ongoing. As part of the review of attendance workshops were conducted with 
line managers to seek feedback on current attendance procedures.  A joint 
meeting with take place with the trade unions to further this work in January 
2019.

Completed. Training sessions in November 2018 focussed on sharing good 



Attendance Management 2018/2019 – Action Plan Appendix 2

OFFICIAL

through ‘guest slots’ 
on attendance 
management 
training 

April 2018 Manager practice, the principles of constructive attendance management and 
developing managers confidence, skills and knowledge to support staff who 
are absent from work. These training sessions will continue throughout 2019.

Reporting Review technology 
and refine reporting 
arrangements (and 
include costing for 
absence)

Provide further 
statistical analysis 
highlighting hotspots 
and trends

Benchmark statistics 
against other public 
and private sector 
organisations

March 2019

June 2018

June 2018

HR 
Business 
Partner / 
B4B project 

HRBP/ HR 
Strategy 

HRBP/ HR 
Strategy 

Ongoing. This will be addressed thorough implementation of Business World 
(delayed). 

Completed. HR Delivery target initiatives to address hotspots/trends and 
provide detailed analysis to each Directorate Management Team. 

Completed. Benchmarking exercises are undertaken through North West 
Employers and the Office of National Statistics. This will be repeated annually 
to inform future attendance management activity.

Controls Include sickness 
absence in HR 
Scorecard at 
directorate and 
service level

Restriction on 
agency cover to 
encourage 
managers to actively 
manage absence

July 2018

April 2018 

HRBP

CLT

Completed. Incorporated within Corporate Scorecard and Management 
Information provided to Corporate Leadership Team and the Directorate 
Management Teams.

Completed. There is a robust process in place via Recruitment Watch which 
requires a business case to be submitted prior to approval to recruit agency 
workers. Managers are required to submit their business case which is 
approved by Heads of Service.



Attendance Management 2018/2019 – Action Plan Appendix 2

OFFICIAL

Prevention 
and Well-
being 

Embed 
responsibilities for 
managers and 
employees to 
support staff well-
being at work and 
during absence 
episodes

Roll out of Mental 
Health First Aid 
Training 

Liaise with 
Occupational 
Health/other 
agencies regarding 
health campaigns  

Promote the 
Employee 
Assistance 
Programme (EAP)

Continue the 
ongoing training 
programme to build 
personal resilience 
and manage stress.

The adoption of 
initiatives as 
identified by the 
Well-being in Work 

April 2019

Feb 2018

On-going 

March 2019

March 2019

Ongoing

Managers/H
R Delivery

Workforce 
Manager 

Health and 
Safety 
Manager 

HR 
Strategy/ 
HRBP 

Workforce 
Manager

OD 
Manager

Ongoing. This continues through day-to-day working with the managers and 
will also be incorporated into the revised Attendance Management Training.  
HR surgeries will focus upon attendance and wellbeing.

Completed. Two cohorts have been trained with plans for a further session to 
be rolled out in 2019. The names and contact details of Mental Health First 
Aiders are publicised on posters throughout Council’s buildings. 

Completed. A series of health awareness campaigns have been publicised 
through Team Voice and the Wellbeing Newsletter.  A calendar of health 
campaigns has been developed for 2019 with monthly themes focussing on 
areas such as mental health, no smoking, men’s health, women’s health, 
looking after your heart. 

Completed. Regular items continue to be included in council communications 
including the most recent Wellbeing in Work newsletter. Senior HR Officers 
promote the services of the EAP scheme across the Council.

Completed.  Personal resilience and stress management form part of the 
corporate training programme. These courses will continue to run during 
2019.

Ongoing. The building based wellbeing in work forums have continued to 
meet. The Westfields group which is very strong, along with members of the 
contributors group, have delivered a book club, yoga sessions in the evening, 
benches on the grass in the car park and are piloting a wellbeing room. The 
first aid room in all the main buildings is now a multi purpose room for first 
aid, prayer and breast feeding. Forum meetings are planned for all the main 



Attendance Management 2018/2019 – Action Plan Appendix 2

OFFICIAL

Staff Forum and 
Wellbeing 
Contributors Group. 

buildings at the end of January.





OFFICIAL
1

Staffing Committee 

Date of Meeting: 24 January 2019

Report Title: Brighter Future Together (Culture) Programme 

Portfolio Holder: Cllr Paul Findlow - Portfolio Holder - Corporate Policy and Legal 
Services

Senior Officer: Sara Barker - Head of Strategic HR 

1. Report Summary

1.1 The purpose of this report is to update Staffing Committee and seek feedback 
since the last Staffing Committee, held on 4th October 2018, of progress in 
terms of the programme. To date programme delivery against plan is on 
schedule with the exception of the enabling projects; Induction programme 
and Appraisal which have experienced slippage due to the delays associated 
with implementing the Business World system.  

2. Recommendation

2.1 To note the report.

3.  Reasons for Recommendations

3.1 To ensure Members are kept up to date with the progress on the Brighter 
Future Together (Culture) Programme.

4.  Other Options Considered

4.1 Not applicable.

5. Background 

5.1 Following the Local Government Association’s independent culture review 
and acceptance of the report recommendations, good progress continues to 
be made working closely with the Council’s partners Sticky Change to co-
create and deliver the Council’s Brighter Future Together (Culture) 
Programme. 

5.2 The programme focuses on defining the Vision for the Council’s workplace 
culture and behaviours, aligned to the Council’s FIRST values (Flexibility, 
Innovation, Responsibility, Service, Teamwork). This will allow the Council to 
build on strengths and the behaviours role modelled by staff and members 



OFFICIAL

that are reflected in the Employee Deal, to ensure that the vision for our 
workplace culture is realised, implemented and embedded for the future.

5.3 The Brighter Future Together (Culture) Programme is a key part of the 
Council’s overall Organisational Transformation Programme to deliver the 
Corporate Plan and Medium Term Financial Strategy and will both inform and 
influence related programmes and projects. As the journey evolves it will 
touch every part of the Council as the outcomes are implemented and 
embedded, creating our new workplace culture.

5.4 The Brighter Future Programme work that is being co-created and delivered 
with Sticky Change is phased over a 12 month period as follows: 

5.4.1 Phase1: Starting the Conversation and co-creation

5.4.2 Phase 2: Developing the Deal and mobilising the Champions

5.4.3 Phase 3: Engaging everyone for working for a Brighter Future  

5.4.4 Phase 4: Broader alignment and development 

5.4.5 Phase 5: Inform, sustain and embed

5.5 The key deliverables for each phase are outlined in Appendix 1. 

5.6 The programme includes key enabling projects that will ensure that the Vision 
for Workplace Culture, the revised behaviours and the Employee Deal are 
implemented and embedded across the organisation. The focus of the 
enabling projects is  outlined in Appendix 2.  

5.7 The recommendations included in the Local Government Association report 
are being addressed through the work that the Council is undertaking with 
Sticky Change and through the enabling projects. This is reflected in the table 
in Appendix 4. 

6. Briefing Information

6.1 The briefing information provides an update on phases 3 and 4 of the 
programme and a summary update with reference to the enabling projects 
and the Members’ Forum. 

6.2 Phase 3: Engaging Everyone for Working for a Brighter Future

6.2.1 In October, the Council asked staff to complete a short survey to test the 
awareness of the Brighter Future Together (Culture) Programme. In addition, 
three specific questions were asked about awareness of the confidential Stop 
Bullying Behaviour Helpline, frequency of team meetings and whether Team 
Voice was discussed at team meetings. 



OFFICIAL
3

6.2.2 The survey was administered by an independent provider djs employee 
research and was live between 8th and 19th October 2018. The survey was 
available to complete on line and in addition paper surveys were distributed 
none “e” enabled staff.

6.2.3 The survey comprised of 10 questions and took no longer than five minutes to 
complete. 

6.2.4 In total, 1,331 staff completed the pulse survey, this equates to more than a 
third of the total permanent workforce and is slightly more staff than 
participated in the Starting the Conversation. The Council’s provider djs have 
confirmed that this response rate is typical of an internal pulse survey. 

6.2.5 Overall the results of the survey are encouraging; the main findings are as 
follows:

6.2.5.1 Almost all respondents (94 per cent) have heard about the Brighter 
Future Together programme.

6.2.5.2 More than two thirds (69 per cent) know who their Brighter Future 
Champion is.

6.2.5.3 At the time of the survey, more than half (59 per cent) had attended a 
‘What’s the Conversation’ session with their team.

6.2.5.4 The majority of staff are aware of the council's vision for workplace 
culture (85 per cent) and behaviours (86 per cent).

6.2.5.5 Two thirds (67 per cent) of respondents are aware of The Employee 
Deal.

6.2.5.6 Half (50 per cent) of staff who had a team meeting in the last month 
had discussed Team Voice.

6.2.5.7 94 per cent of staff are committed to making Cheshire East Council a 
positive place to work. 

6.2.6 A plan to address the actions arising from the Brighter Future Pulse survey is 
outlined in Appendix 5. 

6.2.7 Having the Conversation training continues for all staff with responsibility for 
managing people. This training is mandatory and focuses on the importance 
of role modelling the behaviours and the role of managers in facilitating 
regular quality conversations with their staff to ensure that the vision, 
behaviours and deal are embedded across the organisation and become the 
norm. . 

6.2.8 At the end of November 73% of managers had completed the training and 
further sessions are scheduled to take place in January. 

6.2.9 Toolkits have been designed to complement the training and will be available 
to staff in January 2019. 



OFFICIAL

6.3 Phase 4: Broader alignment and development 

6.3.1 A Leadership and managerial skills programme has been designed and 
developed incorporating feedback from the recent skills audit and aligned to 
the Brighter Future Together (Culture) programme. 

6.3.2 The programme has been approved by the Corporate Leadership team and 
commissioning is in progress. 

6.3.3 Delivery of the programme is expected to commence in January 2019. 

6.4 Enabling Projects 

6.4.1 Progress made with the enabling projects is detailed in Appendix 2. 

6.4.2 Within the employee deal there is a joint commitment to wellbeing and this is 
being embedded through all the enabling projects. Wellbeing initiatives that 
are included in the projects support the delivery of the Council’s Wellbeing in 
Work Strategy and Plan.  

6.5 Members’ Forum

6.5.1 Following the development and launch of the Member Behaviours the 
Member Forum has been involved in co-creating and developing a 
“Conversation for all Members”. This session focuses on how the behaviours 
can be embedded and used to continually improve the impact of Member 
relationships with officers, residents and each other. These sessions were 
facilitated by the Council’s strategic partners, Sticky Change in November 
and December 2018 and two further sessions have been arranged for 
January 2019.

6.5.2 Four Councillors from the Member Forum attended the Brighter Future 
Together Community meeting in November. This meeting is attended by 
both the Brighter Future Together team and the Brighter Future Champions. 
The meeting provided the opportunity for Councillors to answer questions 
from the officers and was the first step in gaining a better understanding of 
how each of the groups can help each other to embed the Brighter Future 
Together Programme across the Council. All who attended the meeting 
provided positive feedback and have indicated that they would like to 
continue to work together in 2019. 

6.5.3 It was agreed at the Member Forum that the next meeting would take place 
in February 2019 and would include a review of the Member Induction 
training and focus on next steps for the Member Forum in order to 
demonstrate Member engagement. 



OFFICIAL
5

6.6 Next Steps 

6.6.1 The contract that the Council has with Sticky Change to support the work 
that is being undertaken within the Brighter Future Together (Culture) is due 
to end on 28th February 2019. 

6.6.2 A lessons learned workshop will take place with Sticky Change prior to the 
end of February. 

6.6.3 A workshop will take place with representatives from the programme team 
will take place to ensure that plans are in place to embed all aspects of the 
programme across the organisation. 

7 Staffing Committee’s Assurance Role

7.1 Cllr. Moran invited all Staffing Committee Members and Reserves to attend an 
assurance meeting on 7th January 2019. The outcome of this meeting will be 
verbally reported at Staffing Committee on 24th January 2019.   

8 Implications of the Recommendations

8.1 Legal Implications

8.1.1 There are no legal implications for the Council at this stage.

8.2 Financial Implications 

8.2.1 Funding to engage with the Council’s partners Sticky Change is 
agreed. The total cost is £151,460 and this has been funded from the 
Council’s Transformation budget.

8.3 Human Resources Implications

8.3.1 The outcomes of the programme will inform and influence service 
redesign and restructuring and ‘the deal’ for our employees.

8.4 Risk Management Implications

8.4.1 Key Risks 

Key risks and mitigating actions have been identified with input from 
the Programme team and Member Forum and are detailed in Appendix 
3.

8.5 Dependencies 

8.5.1 A dependency map has been developed. 

8.6 Rural Communities Implications

8.6.1 There are no direct implications for rural communities.



OFFICIAL

8.7 Implications for Children & Young People/Cared for Children

8.7.1 There are no direct implications for rural communities.

8.8 Public Health Implications

8.8.1 There are no direct implications for public health.

9 Ward Members Affected

9.1 No specific wards affected.

10. Access to Information

10.1 The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting 
the report writer.

11. Contact Information

11.1 Any questions relating to this report should be directed to the following 
officer:

Name: Emma Morris
Designation: Interim Organisational Development Manager 
Email: emma.morris@cheshireeast.gov.uk

mailto:emma.morris@cheshireeast.gov.uk


OFFICIAL

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 

APPENDIX 1

Programme of Work  

The Brighter Future Programme is phased over a 12 month period: 

Phase Key Deliverables  Start Date  Finish Date Status 
Programme 
Initiation 

 Define and agree 
Programme structure, 
governance and 
terms of reference. 

 Kick off meetings held 
with Programme 
Team, Steering Group 
and Brighter Future 
Together Team

 Co- create the 
Starting the 
Conversation 
Sessions  

 Creating the 
Communication 
Strategy 

 

1 March 18 30 April 18 Completed 

Phase1:Starting 
the Conversation 
and co-creation 

 Deliver the Starting 
the Conversation 
Sessions to Staff and 
Members 

 Deliver the Starting 
the Conversation 
Survey 

 Deliver Leadership 
Change Workshop 

 Co-create the 
Behavioural 
Framework 

1 April 18 31May 18 Completed 

Phase 2: 
Developing the 
Deal and 
mobilising the 
facilitators 

 Train members of the 
CE community to 
become Brighter 
Future Programme 
Champions  

 Co-design and create 
the “What is the 
Conversation?” 
sessions  

 Develop the 
Employee Deal 

1 May 18 30 June 18 Completed  

Phase 3: 
Engaging 

 Deliver the Working 
For a Brighter Future 

1 July 18 31 Jan 19 On 
schedule 



OFFICIAL

everyone for 
working for a 
Brighter Future  

Together Workshops 
to employees and 
Members

 Design and deliver an 
impact survey

Phase 4: Broader 
alignment & 
development 

 Construct and 
conduct a skills audit 
aligned to the 
behaviours

 Feedback and input to 
build on existing 
schemes and 
influence and align 
wider deliverables 

 Design, build and 
deliver the Leadership 
and managerial skills 
programme 

1 Jun 18 31 Dec 18 Completed  

Phase 5: Inform, 
sustain and 
embed

 Introduction of Values 
Champions Forums 

 Introduction of a 
Brighter Future 
Masterclass 
Programme 

 Design and facilitate a 
Leadership Team and 
Values Champion 
Conference 

1 Sep 18 31 Mar 19 On 
Schedule 



CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 

APPENDIX 2

ENABLING PROJECTS 
Key: Completed/ On Schedule/ Behind Schedule

Project Project Outline Progress Update
Recruitment Process Developing an efficient and successful Recruitment Process 

aligned to the Vision for Workplace Culture, FIRST values and 
Behaviours.      

A new recruitment system has 
replaced Taleo and will interface 
with Business World. Work is 
underway to improve the process 
and experience for managers and 
candidates along with looking at 
options to use strength based 
recruitment tools and exploring 
innovative ways of recruiting to 
CEC values and behaviours.

Induction Programme  An Induction Programme that is aligned to the Vision for 
workplace culture, FIRST Values and Behaviours complemented 
by a detailed toolkit, appropriate training interventions and 
tracking methods.

Background work completed on the 
revised Induction programme. 
Progress stalled due to delays with 
the Business World 
implementation.

HR Processes and 
Procedures

Review and update HR Policies, Procedures and Processes.  Phase 1 b) Capability, Employee 
Wellbeing/ Managing Attendance, 
Adoption Policy, Ordinary Parental 
Leave, Maternity Policy, Paternity 
Leave Policy drafted. Update to 
Disciplinary Policy completed 



awaiting union consultation. 
Updated Management Guidance 
for Grievance Policy.

Appraisal & 360 
feedback

An automated appraisal system that is aligned to the Vision for 
workplace culture, FIRST Values and Behaviors with the 
capability to capture training data. Complimented by a detailed 
toolkit and appropriate training interventions.

Further delayed due to Business 
World/ joint procurement. Process 
circulated for approval & toolkit 
work with Sticky Change complete 
but go live cannot occur until 
procurement is complete. 
Mitigation includes preparing for a 
paper based process in the interim.

Skills Audit & 
Management 
Development

Developing an informed position statement on the organisation’s 
skills. Developing the organisation’s current and future leaders 
and managers through consistent succession planning and a 
Leadership & Management Development Training Programme.     

Leadership and Management skills 
audit complete. Communicated 
findings to WLT on 17th September 
2018. Findings informed creation of 
Management Development Plan. 
Draft management development 
programme approved by WLT and 
their management teams. 
Commissioning in progress.

Coaching Programme A programme of work that develops the skills of managers and 
champions in various roles to develop targeted coaching skills. 

Work in progress to ensure a 
quality solution that is aligned with 
the vision, behaviours and deal. 
Draft to be shared with programme 
team by 31 Jan 2019   

Wellbeing and 
Recognition

A package of work with particular focus on some of the LGA 
recommendations from the culture review relating to bullying and 
harassment helpline and other insight mechanisms. This work 
package forms part of the wider Wellbeing in Work Programme 
already underway.

A dedicated helpline to provide 
support to those employees 
experiencing inappropriate 
behaviour went live 6th August 
2018. The helpline is called Stop 
Bullying Behaviour and is provided 



by Workplace Wellness.
Pay and Reward Review and align pay and benefits policy and procedure.  Product description work package 

completed. Alignment of benefits 
package due to be completed 
March 2019. 





CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
APPENDIX 3 – Top 3 Risks

Risk Risk Type Cause Impact Measure 
Impact of the Best 4 
Business Programme

Threat Delayed timescales and lack of control in 
changing some of the design of key 
process and procedure.

Delay to achieving 
key milestones in 
the  Induction, 
Appraisal & 360, 
and Wellbeing 
enabling projects. 

Restricted in 
developing new 
recruitment 
process and 
procedure that is 
outside of the 
system capability 

Develop and implement a 
paper based appraisal system 
as interim solution. 

Develop a manual system for 
tracking training and skills. 

Continue with the current Exit 
Interview process and develop 
manual methods of capturing 
compliance in the interim.  

Lack of Political 
Engagement 

Threat There will be a high number of members 
new to Cheshire East Council in 2019. 
New members might be overwhelmed by 
the amount of other information that they 
have to deal with, or they might not 
appreciate the need for change because 
they were not aware of the issues prior 
to the LGA report

New members may 
fail to engage.

Include details of the Brighter 
Future (Culture) programme in 
the Member Induction 
material.  Ensure that mentors 
are aware of the need to 
encourage participation in the 
programme.  Encourage 
groups to promote the 
programme to new members.

Impact of other 
programmes on this 
one

Threat External programmes of work upon 
which this programme has dependencies 
might negatively impact on this 
programme if they are delayed. For 
example, some HR enabling projects are 
relying on progress on the 
Best4Business programme.

May prevent 
progress in some 
areas and cause 
delays in achieving 
the objectives of 
this programme

Ensure close linkages with 
other change programmes.

Ensure good communications 
between potential and actual 
delays to any programmes 
upon which this one is 
dependent. 





CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
APPENDIX 4 – Progress Update - Recommendations from the Local Government Association Report 

LGA Recommendation Update Status 
1. Elected Members and senior managers should 

initiate an immediate conversation about what 
they want the “tone” of the organisation to be. 

Everyone in the organisation had the opportunity to participate in the 
conversation. 1017 people provided their feedback via the Starting the 
Conversation Sessions and Survey.  

Complete 

2. The Council should consider building upon 
training for Elected Members (including 
induction training) to provide clarity on their 
relationships with staff. 

Member Development & Technology Panel has developed and agreed a 
mandatory training programme for elected members for 2019/20 which includes 
an induction programme. Embedding the Member Behaviours will be done via a 
“Having the Conversation Session” specifically adapted for Members, the 
content has been discussed and agreed with the Member Forum. Training took 
place in November and December and two further sessions have been arranged 
in January 2019. 

Complete 
and 
embedding 

3. The Council should consider presenting a new 
employment deal for everyone that is explicit 
about what employees can expect from the 
Council and what the Council can expect of 
them. 

Employee Deal launched 26th July and being implemented via the “What’s the 
Conversation?” sessions.  Training for managers commenced in October and 
will run through January and February 2019.

Complete 
and 
embedding 

4. A skills audit for all managers should be 
undertaken to assess where there are issues 
or gaps, particularly regarding the skills 
required to manage people effectively. Once 
concluded the Council should develop a 
programme to provide appropriate 
development as needed and ensure that 
standards are maintained through on-going 
performance management. 

The management skills audit was conducted during July 2018. In total, 475 
responses were received. This represents a significantly high response rate of 
78% response rate (610 surveys were sent out in total).
Results of the audit have informed the “Having the Conversation” training that 
has been created which will focus on embedding the Vision, Behaviours and 
Deal. 
Management Development Programme designed and approved. Commissioning 
now in progress.  

On 
Schedule 

5. Consideration should be given to reviewing 
the current appraisal process and as part of 
that consideration should be given to the 
inclusion of 360-degree feedback. 

Review completed new process in progress. Oracle replacement system in 
commissioning process, ongoing delays regarding joint procurement with 
Cheshire West and Chester Council resulting in a risk to timelines. Process has 
been submitted for sign-off and a paper based process is in planning to mitigate 
for lack of electronic system availability. 

Behind 
Schedule 
due to 
Business 
World 

6. The restructuring procedure is currently under 
review and this should take cognizance of the 
impact of change on the workforce. 

The restructuring procedure is being reviewed under the Leaving the Council 
and Organisational Change procedure. Implementation expected by the end of 
March 2019.

On 
Schedule 



CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
APPENDIX 4 – Progress Update - Recommendations from the Local Government Association Report 

LGA Recommendation Update Status 
7. It would be helpful to establish an independent 

helpline or person for people to raise / discuss 
concerns about bullying or bad behaviour 
without fear of being identified. 

Helpline  live on 6th August 2018. 
No calls recorded in the first quarter ending 30th September 2018.  
Awareness raised via Team Voice, Posters and via the Champions in the What’s 
the Conversation Sessions. Pulse survey results suggest awareness of the 
helpline is high with 82% of employees that completed the survey confirming that 
they are aware of the helpline. 

Complete 

8. A through analysis of stress related sickness 
and bullying related disciplinary / grievance 
cases with new targets set to bring levels 
down over time. 

Analysis has been undertaken and monthly performance data is made available 
to managers. HR are providing support to achieve targets.  

Complete 
and 
embedding 

9. There should be a concerted effort to build 
upon the established employee recognition 
programme. 

Current programme is being aligned to the Vision, Behaviours and Employee 
Deal. Additional ways of providing recognition via a digital platform have been 
agreed in principle at the Brighter Future Steering Group and progress is now 
underway to secure funding and agree the procurement route and process.   
Numbers of Made my Day instant recognition have significantly increased during 
October and November following the implementation of the What’s the 
Conversation sessions. 

Complete 
and 
embedding 

10. Policies should be effective fair and commonly 
understood. Recommend that particular 
attention is given to the recruitment process.  

A new recruitment system has replaced Taleo and will interface with Business 
World. Work is underway to improve the process and experience for managers 
and candidates along with looking at options to use strength based recruitment 
tools and exploring innovative ways of recruiting to CEC values and behaviours.  

Complete 
and 
embedding 

11. . Creation of a “People Panel” where staff 
could mix, network and share stories on a 
range of issues. 

Brighter Future Together Team – 38 staff from across the organisation meet on 
a monthly basis.  115 Brighter Future Champions trained. Champion & BFTT 
CommunityDevelopment Day took place on 18th October to celebrate success 
and to work through ideas for the future role of the Champion community. 
Friday update email introduced to the Champions & BFTT Community 
Representation from the Champion & BFTT community at the Steering Group.

Complete 
and 
embedding 

12. Consideration should be given to appointing 
an Elected Member Champion to provide a 
conduit between the workforce and politicians. 

Members’ Forum created and meets on a monthly basis.Members’ Forum role 
as Champions included in the terms of reference for the forum and profile 
agreed. Member behaviours launched on 26th July 2018 and “A conversation 
with members” training took place in November and December 2018 and two 
further sessions have been arranged in January 2019. 

Complete 
and 
embedding 



CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
APPENDIX 5 - Brighter Future Pulse Survey Action Plan 

OFFICIAL

Result Recommendation / Action Due Date Responsible Status 

1 1331 employees completed the survey which is a 37% 
response rate. 

Improve the response rate of the next 
Pulse Survey with teaser 
communications prior to opening and 
additional reminder emails during the 
survey period.

February 19 OD Team and 
Communications 
Team 

Commence 
early 
February 
19 

2 94% of employees state that they have heard about the 
Brighter Future Programme however, the lowest awareness 
was within Children and Families Services. 

OD team working closely with the 
Brighter Future Champions to ensure 
that the What’s the Conversation 
(WTC) sessions are delivered to staff. 

Immediately OD Team and 
Brighter Future 
Champions 

68% of 
staff 
completed 

3 69% of staff know who their Brighter Future Champion is 
however 30% responded no or don’t know.

This is likely to be addressed as more 
staff complete the What’s the 
Conversation (WTC) session with their 
Champion. In addition the OD Team to 
highlight with the Brighter Future 
Champions and look at alternative 
ways to raise their profile within their 
service areas. To be measured via the 
next Pulse survey. 

February 19 OD Team and 
Brighter Future 
Champions 

64% of 
total 
employees 
completed 
WTC 
sessions 

4 Over half (59%) of staff who completed the survey have 
attended the What’s the Conversation session. Lower 
attendance within Children and Families Service and Planning 
and Sustainable Development Team. 

OD Team working with Brighter Future 
Champions across the organisation to 
ensure that the What’s the 
Conversation (WTC) sessions are 
delivered to staff. 
A What’s the Conversation and wider 
Brighter Future Programme update 
were included in the Planning Team 
away day in December and further 
What’s the Conversation sessions are 
being planned. 

January 19 OD Team and 
Brighter Future 
Champions

64% of 
total 
employees 
completed 
WTC 
sessions



CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
APPENDIX 5 - Brighter Future Pulse Survey Action Plan 

OFFICIAL

5 Awareness of the vision for workplace culture, behaviours and 
deal is lowest in the People directorate. 

In addition to supporting the Brighter 
Future Champions to deliver the 
What’s the Conversation sessions a 
fact sheet has been developed and 
sent to hard to reach frontline staff 
within the People directorate with the 
opportunity to feedback questions via 
their line managers.  

January 19 OD Team and 
People 
Directorate 

68% of  
staff 
completed 
within C&F 
service and 
49% within 
Adult 
Social 
Care 

6 Awareness of the employee deal is slightly lower than 
awareness of the vision for workplace culture and the 
behaviours. 

Ensure that links to the employee deal 
are made explicit in future 
communications to staff. 
Create posters detailing the employee 
deal to be displayed in all main 
buildings.
Conversations relating to the employee 
deal are included in the My 
Conversations Toolkits that will be 
available in January 2019.

January 19 OD Team 
Communications 
Team 
Managers 

Posters 
ordered 

7 82% of employees that completed the survey are aware of the 
Stop Bullying Behaviour Helpline. 

Continue to display posters in the main 
buildings and promote via Team Voice 
and What’s the Conversation sessions.

Immediately OD Team
Comms Team 

Complete 

8 71% of employees have had a team meeting within the last 
month but 5% have not had a team meeting in the last 
6months. 

Remind managers of the importance  
to schedule team meetings via the 
Core Brief and encourage managers to 
use the Toolkits to enhance their team 
meetings and encourage them to 
discuss the vision, behaviours and 
employee deal.

January 19 OD Team 
Comms Team 

Core Brief 
drafted 



OFFICIAL
1

Staffing Committee 

Date of Meeting:  24 January 2019

Report Title: Pay Policy Statement 2019/20

Portfolio Holder: Councillor Paul Findlow – Corporate Policy & Legal Services

Senior Officer: Sara Barker, Head of Strategic HR

1. Report Summary

1.1. Section 38 of the Localism Act (2011) requires Local Authorities to produce 
a Pay Policy Statement by 31st March on an annual basis. Regard 
continues to be given to any guidance from the Secretary of State in 
producing this statement and the Local Government Transparency Code 
(2015).

1.2. The Pay Policy Statement for 2019/20 which reflects the expected position 
as at 1st April 2019 is attached as Appendix 1. Changes since last year’s 
Statement are outlined in section 6.4 of this report.

2. Recommendation/s

2.1. That the changes since the 2018/19 Pay Policy Statement be noted as 
outlined in section 6.4 of this report.

2.2. That the attached Pay Policy Statement for 2019/20 be recommended by 
Staffing Committee to Council for approval and published accordingly.

3. Reasons for Recommendation/s

3.1. A Pay Policy Statement has been required to be produced annually since 
2012/13 under Section 38 of the Localism Act (2011). Local Authorities 
must have their Pay Policy Statement approved by full Council and 
published on their website no later than the 31st March prior to the financial 
year to which it relates.



OFFICIAL

4. Other Options Considered

4.1. Not applicable.

5. Background

5.1. The purpose of the Pay Policy Statement is to increase accountability, 
transparency and fairness with regard to the Council’s approach to pay with 
particular focus on its Chief Officers. 

6. Key Updates to the Pay Policy Statement

6.1.The Pay Policy Statement 2019/20 follows the style and format of the 
Statement published in 2018/19. The Statement focuses on the broad 
principles and policies regarding pay and has links to further information and 
statistical data available on the Council’s website and associated policies. 

6.2.The Statement has again been designed to be user friendly for public 
consumption and should require minimal updates each subsequent year. 

6.3.The links to further information will be updated as appropriate through the 
coming year.

6.4.Changes since the last Pay Policy Statement;

6.4.1. Section 3.5 – reflects a small change in the broad remuneration 
ranges for Chief Officers (Tiers 1-3) due to a 2% national pay 
increase in April 2018.

6.4.2. Section 3.6 – updates on the development of a new Cheshire East 
Pay Structure in response to the NJC pay structure and revised pay 
spine. It also provides an update on the potential impact on the 
grading structure for Chief Officers. 

6.4.3. Section 4 – as a result of the NJC pay agreement, it will no longer 
be necessary to pay a Local Living Wage supplement due to the 
uprated pay points for the lowest paid staff now exceeding National 
Living Wage. The lowest pay point will be £9.00 an hour with effect 
from 1st April 2019.

6.4.4. Sections 10 and 11 – re-ordered so that Section 10 is Settlement 
Agreements and Section 11 is Mutually Agreed Resignation 
Scheme.

6.4.5. Section 14 – updated paragraph in relation to Gender Pay Gap data 
(removal of “during the 2017/18 financial year and annually 
thereafter” ) . 



OFFICIAL
3

7. Implications of the Recommendations

7.1. Legal Implications

7.1.1. The Council is required to produce and publish a Pay Policy 
Statement agreed by full Council each year, under Section 38 of the 
Localism Act (2011).

7.1.2. In addition, the Local Government Transparency Code (2015) 
requires information on organisational structure, senior salaries and 
pay multiples to be published annually each year.

7.1.3. This report and the accompanying Pay Policy Statement, with 
associated links in Annex 1, once approved and adopted ensures 
that Cheshire East Council complies with these requirements. 

7.2. Finance Implications

7.2.1. There are no direct financial implications associated with approving 
the updated Pay Policy Statement 2019/20 and no budgetary 
adjustments are proposed in relation to this report.

7.3. Policy Implications

7.3.1. Any decisions relating to the pay and remuneration of Chief Officers 
must comply with the Pay Policy Statement in place at the time for 
that financial year. Whilst the Statement can be amended during the 
year should the need arise, changes are subject to the approval of 
full Council.

7.4. Equality Implications

7.4.1. There are no direct equality implications associated with approving 
the updated Pay Policy Statement 2019/20, any potential 
implications relating to pay are addressed within the relevant pay 
policies.

7.5. Human Resources Implications

7.5.1. Associated pay policies and HR support must comply with the Pay 
Policy Statement.

7.6. Risk Management Implications

7.6.1. If the Council does not follow specific aspects of the guidance 
issued by DCLG and therefore does not achieve appropriate levels 
of openness and accountability, DCLG can take steps to require the 
Council to adapt particular policies. 



OFFICIAL

7.7. Rural Communities Implications

7.7.1. There are no direct implications for rural communities.

7.8. Implications for Children & Young People/Cared for Children 

7.8.1. There are no direct implications for children and young people.

7.9. Public Health Implications

7.9.1. There are no direct implications for public health.

8. Ward Members Affected

8.1. There are no specific ward members affected.

9. Consultation & Engagement

9.1. The Pay Policy Statement 2019/20 has been shared with Trade Unions.

10.Access to Information

10.1. Background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting 
the report writer.

11.Contact Information

11.1. Any questions relating to this report should be directed to the following 
officer:

Name: Craig Hughes

Job Title: HR Business Partner

Email: craig.hughes@cheshireeast.gov.uk 

mailto:craig.hughes@cheshireeast.gov.uk


CHESHIRE EAST PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2019/2020 Page | 1

Appendix 1

Pay Policy Statement 2019/20

1. Introduction and Purpose

Under Section 112 of the Local Government Act 1972, the Council has the 
“power to appoint officers on such reasonable terms and conditions as the 
authority thinks fit”. This Pay Policy Statement (the ‘statement’) sets out the 
Council’s approach to pay policy in accordance with the requirements of 
Section 38-43 of the Localism Act 2011 and due regard to the associated 
Statutory Guidance including the Supplementary Statutory Guidance issued in 
February 2013 and guidance issued under the Local Government 
Transparency Code 2015.

The purpose of the statement is to provide transparency with regard to the 
Council’s approach to setting the pay of its senior employees (excluding 
teaching staff, employees working in local authority schools and academies 
and alternative service delivery vehicles) by identifying:

 The methods by which salaries of all employees are determined;

 The detail and level of remuneration of its most senior employees i.e. 
‘Chief Officers’, as defined by the relevant legislation;

“Remuneration” for the purposes of this statement includes three elements - 
basic salary, pension and all other allowances arising from employment.

Once approved by Council, this policy statement will come into effect on the 
1st April 2019 superseding the 2018/19 statement and will continue to be 
reviewed on an annual basis.

2. Background

In determining the pay and remuneration of all of its employees, the Council 
takes account of the need to ensure value for money in respect of the use of 
public expenditure. This is balanced against the need to recruit and retain 
employees in an increasingly competitive market who are able to deliver the 
Council’s commitments and meet the requirements of providing high quality 
services, which are delivered effectively and efficiently and at times at which 
those services are required.

The Council complies with all relevant employment legislation and codes of 
practice.  The Council ensures there is no pay discrimination within its pay 
structures and that all pay differentials can be objectively justified through the 



CHESHIRE EAST PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2019/2020 Page | 2

use of job evaluation mechanisms and the application of key criteria, which 
directly establish the relative levels of posts in grades according to the 
requirements, demands and responsibilities of the role.

3. Pay Structure

Senior Management

3.1 Principles

There are a number of overriding principles which govern the Council’s 
approach to senior management reward:

 The policy will be affordable; with reward being commensurate with 
individual and corporate performance.

 Reward policy for senior post-holders will be transparent, clearly 
defined and readily understood.

 The policy will offer the flexibility to reward for job size, capability, 
performance (objectives and behaviors), and market rates (where 
these may be relevant, with evidence).

 Reward for senior roles will be fair and proportionate by comparison to 
reward for the wider workforce.

3.2 Reward components

For many senior posts, reward will continue to comprise basic salary, and 
annual performance related pay incentive and a range of benefits.  
The components are described as follows:

 Basic salary (Achieving Rate): this is guaranteed fixed cash 
remuneration, paid monthly. The level of basic salary is contractual.

 ‘Exceeding’ Performance Award: this is paid as a lump sum annually 
with basic salary for the previous year’s performance. After the year, it 
is withdrawn unless re- earned. This element is pensionable. 

 Benefits: the Council provides a range of benefits, some of which are 
guaranteed and form a part of the contract of employment. Generous 
holiday and access to the Local Government Pension Scheme are 
principal benefits.

A small number of the Council’s most senior managers no longer receive a 
performance related pay incentive. This has been replaced by an inclusive 



CHESHIRE EAST PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2019/2020 Page | 3

salary and in some cases Market Supplements may be paid where 
appropriate.  

3.3 Job Evaluation and Banding

The Council uses the Hay Group job evaluation scheme to position roles into 
the Cheshire East Senior Management pay bands. The bands are linked to 
Hay Job Evaluation points ranges which have been determined as part of the 
Council’s operating model.

3.4Senior Manager Pay Structure

This defined pay structure determines the salaries of senior managers on JNC 
(Joint National Council for Chief Officers) conditions of service. A score is 
produced from the evaluation process which equates to a pay band on the 
Council’s senior manager pay structure.

Each grade within the senior manager pay structure has an achieving rate 
and the potential for a defined exceeding performance award (para 3.2 
refers), within each role. The pay structure for senior managers who are 
subject to JNC conditions of service can be seen by accessing the senior 
manager pay and grading structure. 

In addition, there are a number of public health employees who transferred 
under TUPE to the Council on NHS Pay and Terms and Conditions on 1st 
April 2013 and some of these staff remain on the terms and conditions of their 
previous NHS employer.  

3.5 Chief Officer remuneration

When applying the senior manager pay structure, for the purposes of this 
statement, the definition of Chief Officers is as set out in Section 43 of the 
Localism Act. 

The posts falling within the statutory definition are set out below, with details 
of their salary package as at 1st January 2019.

Chief Executive – Tier 1
 The salary package of the post is within the range of £156,075 to 

£166,075

Chief Officer – Tier 2 (direct reports to the Chief Executive, plus the 
Monitoring Officer)

 The salary package of these posts fall within a range of £93,645, to 
£,140,364

Deputy Chief Officer – Tier 3 (direct reports to Tier 2 managers)

http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/pdf/Council/pay-grading-structure/Senior-managers-pay-structure-JNC.pdf
http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/pdf/Council/pay-grading-structure/Senior-managers-pay-structure-JNC.pdf


CHESHIRE EAST PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2019/2020 Page | 4

 The salary package of these posts fall within a range of £58,373 to 
£114,455

    3.6 Pay and grading structure for staff

The pay and grading structure for staff  on NJC (National Joint Council for 
Local Government Services) is also available.

The Council is reviewing its local pay structures (Grades 1 to 12) as a result of 
the two year national agreement which covered the period 2018 – 2020. 
These changes will bring Cheshire East Council in line with the NJC for Local 
Government Services pay structure and the revised national pay spine (spinal 
column points). This new pay structure will be implemented from the 1st April 
2019 in accordance with the NJC national agreement. Similarly a review of 
the JNC Pay Structure for Chief Officers is being considered as there is 
overlap of the two grading structures and there is a need to establish clear 
differentials. 

4. Living Wage 
   

The Council implemented a Local Living Wage on 1st November 2015 of 
£7.85 per hour to ensure it was aligned with the Government’s commitment to 
raise the National Living Wage. 
As a result of the 2018 – 20 NJC pay agreement, it is no longer necessary to 
pay a Local Living Wage supplement because the uprated pay points for the 
lowest paid staff have been increased and now exceed the National Living 
Wage. For information the lowest pay point will be £9.00 an hour with effect 
from 1st April 2019.

5. Recruitment of Chief Officers

The Council’s policy and procedures with regard to recruitment of Chief 
Officers is set out in the Council’s Constitution and Scheme of Delegation and 
is undertaken by an Appointment Panel made up of members of the Staffing 
Committee in accordance with arrangements set out in the Constitution. Full 
Council approval will be sought for the establishment of a role on a salary 
package exceeding £100,000 where remuneration departs from the pay policy 
statement.

When recruiting to all posts, the Council will take full and proper account of all 
provisions of relevant employment law and its own Recruitment Policy and 
Procedure, Disability Confident Commitment, Mindful Employer, 
Redeployment Policy and Procedure and Equality in Employment Policy.

The determination of the remuneration to be offered to any newly appointed 
Chief Officer will be in accordance with the pay structure and relevant policies 
in place at the time of recruitment and in line with this Pay Policy Statement. 
New appointments will normally be made at the achieving rate for the grade, 

http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/pdf/Council/pay-grading-structure/Senior-managers-pay-structure-JNC.pdf


CHESHIRE EAST PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2019/2020 Page | 5

although this can be varied on an exceptional basis where necessary to 
secure the best candidate and will take into account the appointee’s existing 
pay and their relevant experience and qualifications taking account of equal 
pay within the Council.

From time to time, it may be necessary to take account of the external pay 
levels in the labour market in order to attract and retain employees with 
particular experience, skills and capacity. Where necessary, the Council will 
ensure the requirement for such is objectively justified by reference to clear 
and transparent evidence of relevant market comparators, using data sources 
available from within the local government sector and outside, as appropriate. 
Any such payments will be reviewed at regular intervals to ensure their 
ongoing suitability and appropriateness.

Where the Council is unable to recruit Chief Officers, or there is a need for 
interim support to provide cover for a substantive Chief Officer post, the 
Council will, where necessary, put in place the most effective arrangements to 
engage individuals. These arrangements will comply with HMRC IR35 
requirements, relevant procurement processes and ensure the Council is able 
to demonstrate maximum value for money.

6. Additions to Chief Officers’ Salaries

The following payments can be applied to Chief Officers’ salaries:

 Returning and Deputy Returning Officers’ Fees
 Travel Allowances and Expenses
 Salary Sacrifice Lease Car Scheme
 Relocation Expenses
 Professional Fees and Subscriptions

Further details of Additions to Chief Officers’ salaries are published in the 
Council’s Transparency Data and in the Statement of Accounts. A link to 
these documents is included in Annex 1 of this Statement.

7. Local Government Pension Scheme

Details of the Local government pension scheme discretions exercised, 
contribution bands, actuarial rates, and discretions policy application are 
available.

8. Redundancy Payments and Payments on Termination

The Council has a Redundancy Scheme which is applicable to all employees 
and is based on the statutory formula, and payment for any leave for 
employees leaving the Council’s employment with accrued leave which by 
agreement is untaken at the date of leaving.

http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/pdf/Council/pay-grading-structure/AddCOsalPPS17-18.pdf
https://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/pdf/Council/pay-grading-structure/Local-Government-pension-scheme19-20.pdf


CHESHIRE EAST PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2019/2020 Page | 6

The Voluntary Redundancy Scheme is also applicable to all employees.  
Employees who leave on grounds of voluntary redundancy will normally be 
entitled to receive a redundancy payment in accordance with the statutory 
formula but based on the employee’s actual week’s pay plus an additional 
severance payment of 0.8 times the statutory payment, bringing the total 
payment to 1.80 times the statutory formula and up to a maximum of 50 
week’s pay. 

The government consulted in 2016 on a range of wider reforms to exit 
payments across the public sector, proposals for change are still awaited from 
the government and the Council’s position will be considered once these 
changes are published. The Council reserves the right to change all 
discretionary elements.

The Council’s approach to statutory and discretionary payments on 
termination of employment of Chief Officers, prior to reaching normal 
retirement age, is set out within the Redundancy Policy and Procedure and for 
those eligible for retirement, in the Retirement and Severance Policy and are 
in accordance with the Local Government (Early Termination of Employment) 
(Discretionary Compensation) Regulations 2006 and Local Government 
Pension scheme Regulations 2007. All payments under this section are 
subject to the approval process set out in the Redundancy Policy and 
Procedure.

9.  Severance and Retirement on Grounds of Efficiency

In line with the Local Government (Early Termination of Employment) 
(Discretionary Compensation) (England and Wales) Regulations 2006, the 
Council also operates a voluntary scheme to facilitate early retirement or 
severance on grounds of efficiency to enable the Council to continue to 
achieve effective use of resources and provide value for money. The terms of 
this are set out in the discretionary policy.

     10. Settlement Agreements

The Council uses settlement agreements for all voluntary 
redundancies/severance and MARS severance payments, for all employees, 
including Chief Officers. The use of settlement agreements on this basis 
minimises any risk of future claims against the Council and can ensure that 
any threatened or pending legal proceedings and their associated legal costs 
can be avoided. The Council follows the current guidance for public sector 
settlement agreements in these circumstances.

     



CHESHIRE EAST PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2019/2020 Page | 7

11. Mutually Agreed Resignation Scheme

The Council operates a Mutually Agreed Resignation Scheme which enables 
individual employees, including Chief Officers, in agreement with the Council, 
to choose to leave their employment voluntarily in return for a discretionary 
‘severance’ payment. This scheme creates resourcing flexibility to avoid 
compulsory redundancies in future, enable the redeployment of resources to 
higher priority areas of work and reduce costs in lower priority areas. MARS is 
non contractual and has no pension liabilities. The terms of this scheme are 
set out in the discretionary policy.

12. Pay Multiples

The Council publishes a range of information to meet the Transparency Code 
requirements and has used the recommended formulae in the code guidance 
and LGA guidance to calculate the relationship between the rate of pay for the 
lowest paid, median and Chief Officers, known as  pay multiples. 

13. Re-employment or re-engagement

Any decision to re-employ an individual (including Chief Officers) already in 
receipt of a Local Government Pension (with same or another local authority) 
will be made on merit, taking into account the use of public money and the 
exigencies of the Council.

In particular, the Voluntary Redundancy Scheme provides that former 
Cheshire East/ Legacy Authority employees who left their employment on 
grounds of voluntary retirement or severance will not be re - employed in any 
capacity, except in exceptional circumstances and subject to the agreement of 
the Head of Strategic HR in consultation with the Leader and the relevant 
Portfolio Holder. Re-engagement includes all types of contractual 
relationships whether they are a contract of employment, contract for service 
etc. and whether the individual is appointed as an employee or engaged as an 
interim, direct consultancy or via an agency or other supplier. 

14. Publication and access to information

Upon approval by Council, this Statement will be published on the Council’s 
website. Additionally, in line with Code of Practice and Accounts and Audit 
Regulations, salary, allowances and bonus compensation and employers 
pension contributions will be published for:

a) Senior employees whose salary is £150,000 or more (who will also 
be identified by name)
b) Senior employees whose salary is £50,000 or more.

http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/pdf/Council/pay-grading-structure/Pay-Multiples19-20.pdf


CHESHIRE EAST PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2019/2020 Page | 8

The Council will also publish, on an annual basis, Gender Pay Gap data in 
line with the Equality Act 2010 (Gender Pay Gap Information) Regulations 
2017.

Prepared by: HR Strategy and Policy Team
Date                         February 2019
Review date: February 2020



CHESHIRE EAST PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2019/2020 Page | 9

Annex 1 – Links

All of the relevant policies and procedures as referred to in the Pay Policy 
Statement can be found using the links in section 1 below. Please contact 
emma.cornwell@cheshireeast.gov.uk should you have any difficulties 
accessing this information.

Section 1. Additional information 

Link 1 – Pay and grading structure for senior managers and staff

Link 2 – Additions to Chief Officers’ salaries

Link 3 – Local government pension scheme

Link 4 – Pay multiples

Statement of Accounts for 2017/18

Section 2. Internal intranet links to the further relevant policies, 
procedures and other relevant information:

Payment of Market Supplements 

Pay and Allowances Policy

Pensions Discretions Policy

Redundancy Policy and Procedure

Retirement and Severance Policy

Recruitment Policy and Procedure

Disability at Work Commitment

Mindful Employer

Redeployment Policy and Procedure

Equality in Employment Policy

Relocation Expenses Policy

For those seeking to access copies of policies externally via 
www.cheshireeast.gov.uk please contact 
emma.cornwell@cheshireeast.gov.uk to request copies of the policies.

mailto:emma.cornwell@cheshireeast.gov.uk
http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/pdf/Council/pay-grading-structure/Senior-managers-pay-structure-JNC.pdf
http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/pdf/Council/pay-grading-structure/AddCOsalPPS17-18.pdf
http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/pdf/Council/pay-grading-structure/paymultiplesPPS17-18.pdf
https://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/pdf/Council/pay-grading-structure/Local-Government-pension-scheme19-20.pdf
https://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/pdf/Council/pay-grading-structure/Pay-Multiples19-20.pdf
https://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/council_and_democracy/your_council/council_finance_and_governance/statement_of_accounts/statement_of_accounts.aspx
http://centranet.ourcheshire.cccusers.com/work/Site%20Documents/Market%20Supplements.doc
https://centranet.cheshireeast.gov.uk/how-do-i/hr-pay-and-employment/pay-scales-grading-and-pay-policies.aspx
https://centranet.cheshireeast.gov.uk/how-do-i/hr-pay-and-employment/pensions.aspx
https://centranet.cheshireeast.gov.uk/how-do-i/hr-pay-and-employment/redundancy.aspx
https://centranet.cheshireeast.gov.uk/how-do-i/hr-pay-and-employment/redundancy.aspx
https://centranet.cheshireeast.gov.uk/how-do-i/hr-pay-and-employment/retirement.aspx
https://centranet.cheshireeast.gov.uk/how-do-i/hr-pay-and-employment/recruitment-process-guide/recruitment-process-guide.aspx
https://centranet.cheshireeast.gov.uk/how-do-i/hr-pay-and-employment/recruitment-process-guide/recruitment-process-guide.aspx
http://centranet.ourcheshire.cccusers.com/work/Site%20Documents/Commitment%20to%20Disability%20at%20Work.doc
http://centranet.ourcheshire.cccusers.com/work/health/Pages/Employing-people-with-a-disability.aspx
https://centranet.cheshireeast.gov.uk/how-do-i/hr-pay-and-employment/redeployment-and-career-transition.aspx
https://centranet.cheshireeast.gov.uk/how-do-i/hr-pay-and-employment/redeployment-and-career-transition.aspx
https://centranet.cheshireeast.gov.uk/how-do-i/hr-pay-and-employment/equality-in-employment.aspx
https://centranet.cheshireeast.gov.uk/how-do-i/hr-pay-and-employment/relocation-and-excess-travel-expenses.aspx
http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/




OFFICIAL

Staffing Committee 

Date of Meeting:  24 January 2019

Report Title: Mutually Agreed Resignation Scheme (MARS) - Review of 
Programme for June 2018 Leavers 

Portfolio Holder: Councillor Paul Findlow - Corporate Policy & Legal Services

Senior Officer: Sara Barker, Head of Strategic HR  

1. Report Summary

1.1. This report addresses an action from the previous Staffing Committee 
meeting (4th October 2018) and provides an overview of outcomes and 
lessons learnt following the Mutually Agreed Resignation Scheme (MARS) 
programme which culminated in 28 employees leaving Cheshire East 
Council on 30 June 2018. 

2. Recommendation

2.1. Staffing Committee is asked to note the contents of this report and provide 
feedback. 

3. Reasons for Recommendation/s

3.1. In compiling this report, the views of Human Resources, Legal Services 
and Finance have been sought and will be used to ensure further 
refinement of the scheme. 

4. Other Options Considered

4.1. Not applicable. 

5. Background

5.1. The Mutually Agreed Resignation Scheme opened for applicants in March 
2018. Of the 96 applications, 32 were approved with 28 employees 
accepting the offer to leave the Council on 30 June 2018. 

5.2. The application process comprised a number of steps:

 Applications received (initial eligibility checked);



OFFICIAL

 Submission of business case by relevant Head of Service;

 Assessment of business case and further eligibility checks;

 Panel to consider applications together with business cases using 
the approval criteria to determine the outcome of the application. 
The Panel consisted of the relevant Executive Director, Head of 
Strategic HR and Head of Finance. 

 Report to CLT outlining the outcome of the exercise and 
recommended list of posts and services impacted,  a financial 
summary of savings and an Equality Impact Assessment. Applicants 
informed of the outcome of their application. 

 Individual settlement agreements issued. 

 Employees left employment on 30 June 2018. 

5.3. This was the first time that the Council had run MARS and had modelled 
the projected savings for the scheme based on the experience of other 
organisations.

5.4. The savings set at £1.5 million for 2018/19 would have been achieved if all 
96 applications had been approved. However, due to the need to retain 
appropriate service levels and ongoing consultations on restructure 
proposals in specific areas, a significant number of applications could not 
be approved. Some applicants were able to consider other options 
available to them such as voluntary redundancy or redeployment, as a 
result savings were made by these alternative means.

Tax Implications

5.5. When staff were invited to submit applications for MARS, the scheme 
allowed for payments up to £30,000 to be paid tax free and succesful 
applicants would not be required to work their contractual notice nor would 
they receive pay in lieu of notice (PILON). However, updated guidance by 
HMRC meant that any part of a payment which could be “deemed to be in 
respect of full or part non-worked notice period” was liable for normal 
deductions of income tax and National Insurance contributions.  

5.6. The Council has taken the appropriate steps to meet these tax and NI costs 
and the amount due to HMRC in respect of this change was £40,432. 

Settlement Agreements

5.7. The MARS settlement agreement template was adapted to incorporate the 
cost of any element of the payment deemed to be PILON by HMRC. 



OFFICIAL
3

5.8. The MARS settlement agreement template will be reviewed again prior to a 
further MARS cycle to ensure that it remains fit for purpose. 

Timeline/Process  

5.9. The implementation and communication schedule ran from March to June 
2018 when the successful applicants left the Council. This was required to 
ensure that staff had awareness of the scheme prior to submitting their 
applications and for the business cases to be compiled. 

5.10. Communications included items in Team Voice, Centranet and drop in 
sessions for staff at different locations across the offices in Cheshire East. 
The communications were provided to the whole of the organisation which 
inevitably led to disappointment for some staff whose applications were not 
successful.Some services felt unable to agree applications due to staff 
shortages, skills shortages in the market and service demmands. For 
example no applications from Adult Services were approved due to staff 
shortages in some areas and the imminent plans for a restructure which 
meant applications were declined at the final stages of the process. One 
third of applications were successful overall (of the 96 applications 
received, 32 were approved). 

5.11. A targetted approach to specifically identified parts of the organisation 
supported by a clear rationale for this course of action will be considered for  
in future to ensure that business needs can be met and employee 
expectations are managed. 

5.12. All staff left on 30 June 2018. Whilst this provided clarity to all concerned, in 
future it may be beneficial to retain some flexibilty to the leaving date and 
therefore potentially provide staggered leaving dates to reflect differing 
business needs. For example, it may be difficult for a service to support an 
application at the time of applying but this could be accommodated on a 
longer term basis meaning a later leaving date could be agreed. Similarly, 
an earlier leaving date may be beneficial; for example, where an employee 
has less service and a shorter statutory notice period. 

Finance information

5.13. Within the Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19, MARS savings were 
set at £1.5 million. The actual savings achieved from staff leaving under the 
scheme was £489,280 offset against £338,520 one-off MARS payments in 
2018/19 with £652,373 ongoing savings in 2019/20 onwards.

5.14. There is a need to clarify some financial terminology for managers; for 
example how to explain ‘net budget’, particularly relating to posts which are 
funded with external income. 



OFFICIAL

5.15. As the MARS scheme programme for 2018 resulted in employees leaving 
on 30 June 2018, there was a need to make budget adjustments as full 
year savings for 2018/2019 were not achieved.

5.16. Although the scheme allows for a post to be retained once the postholder 
has left under MARS, there needs to be further improve systems to ensure 
that the staffing establishment is permanently reduced and/or the budget is 
permanently adjusted accordingly. 

5.17. Any business case for a service growth bid made within a 12 month period 
of an employee leaving through MARS will continue to be carefully 
considered to ensure that this represents good value for public money. 

6. Future Actions

6.1. A summary action plan is included at Appendix one to this report.

6.2. To ensure that the Council is fully compliant with tax leglislation, the 
timeline will be revised to allow provision of individual staff’s statutory notice 
wherever possible. However, it may not always be possible and as a result, 
pay in lieu of notice will be paid with appropriate deductions for income tax 
and National Insurance; this will be in addition to the MARS payment. 

6.3. The Settlement Agreement for MARS leavers is in place. It will be reviewed 
prior to a further MARS cycle to ensure that it remains fit for purpose as 
well as being adapted on an individual basis. It will also be adapted to allow 
for pay in relation to any unworked notice period as required at the time. 

6.4. In conjunction with Finance colleagues, to provide clarity in respect of the 
information required in terms of costs and savings in a consistent and clear 
way to inform the business cases and approval process as well as agreeing 
how the staffing establishment will be adjusted. Recommendations will be 
made by Finance and Human Resources and agreed with the Executive 
Director – Corporate Services. 

6.5. Prior to launching a further MARS programme, to reconsider with CLT how 
the scheme can be further developed, in particular whether there is 
flexibility about leaving dates and the budget savings if there is a strong 
business case to approve an application for MARS. 

7. Implications of the Recommendations

The implications of the recommendations from the report are:

7.1. Legal Implications

7.1.1. The first iteration of the scheme was devised on the basis of 
comprehensive legal advice taken.  The relevant issues highlighted have 



OFFICIAL
5

been dealt with.  The only change since that time relates to treatment of 
tax in respect of any part of a payment which could be deemed to be in 
respect of full or part non-worked notice period.  That is dealt with in the 
body of this report.  The Council is compliant with current legislation in 
respect of any unworked notice period of those leaving Cheshire East 
under this scheme.

7.2. Finance Implications

7.2.1. The one-off cost of the MARS payments for future applications need to 
be funded from either Transforming Services Reserve or by Flexible Use 
of Capital Receipts.  

7.2.2. The exact cost figures would change according to both the number of 
people who were accepted and their employment history. However, the 
2018/19 figures give an average MARS payment and saving achieved. 
Using these average figures, it shows that to achieve the 2019/20  net 
savings target of £300,000 would require 27 members of staff leaving, 
giving a gross saving of £633,000 offset by £333,000 of MARS 
payments.

7.2.3. These savings would continue into 2020/21 where there would be no 
associated MARS payments therefore resulting in an ongoing annual 
saving of £633,000.

7.3. Policy Implications

The Mutually Agreed Resignation Scheme needs to be revised to take 
account of the changes in tax legislation and legal advice received in terms 
of any part of a payment which is deemed to be in relation to unworked 
notice periods. 

7.4. Equality Implications

An Equality Impact Assessment has been completed in respect of the High 
Level Business Case for a further programme of the Mutually Agreed 
Resignation Scheme for 2019/20. 

7.5. Human Resources Implications

Human Resource services are responsible for the implementation of the 
MARS programme in line with current policy and procedure. 

Lessons learnt will be reflected in the revised schedule for 2019.

7.6. Risk Management Implications

There are no direct Risk Management implications. 

7.7. Rural Communities Implications



OFFICIAL

There are no direct implications for rural communities.

7.8. Implications for Children & Young People/Cared for Children 

There are no direct implications for children and young people.

7.9. Public Health Implications

There are no direct implications for public health.

8. Ward Members Affected

8.1. No Wards that will be particularly affected by your recommendation. 

9. Contact Information

9.1. Any questions relating to this report should be directed to the following 
officer:

Name: Sara Duncalf

Job Title: Acting HR Business Partner 

Email: sara.duncalf@cheshireeast.gov.uk 

mailto:sara.duncalf@cheshireeast.gov.uk


OFFICIAL
7

Appendix One:

Summary action plan for future Mutually Agreed Resignation Scheme

Action Detail Responsible By When
1. Individual application timelines to include 

statutory notice period.
If this is not possible, 
make arrangements for 
appropriate deductions.

Head of Strategic HR. As part of agreeing 
individual terms – date to 
be determined when 
date of launch agreed.

2. Review existing settlement agreement. Ensure fit for purpose
Adapt to consider 
individual circumstances
Consider pay in relation 
to unworked notice as 
appropriate.

Head of Strategic HR 
and Director of Legal 
Services and Monitoring 
Officer.

Prior to launch of 
2019/20 MARS scheme.

3. Clarify financial terms. Costs, savings, business 
cases, adjustment of 
establishments.

HR, Finance
Approval by Executive 
Director – Corporate 
Services.

Prior to launch of 
2019/20 MARS scheme.

4. Clarify possible flexibility over budget savings. Clarify if possible and if 
so, what is the decision 
making process.

Corporate Leadership 
Team.

Prior to launch of 
2019/20 MARS scheme.

5. Consider flexibility around leaving dates. Staggered process 
based on statutory 
notice periods and 
business needs.

Corporate Leadership 
Team.

Prior to launch of 
2019/20 MARS scheme.





OFFICIAL

Staffing Committee 

Date of Meeting:  24 January 2019

Report Title: Employment Tribunals – Overview of Lessons Learnt 

Portfolio Holder: Paul Findlow – Corporate Policy & Legal Services

Senior Officer: Sara Barker, Head of Strategic HR 

1. Report Summary

1.1. This report addresses an action identified at the last Staffing Committee 
meeting (4th October 2018) and provides an overview of lessons learnt from 
six Employment Tribunal claims against the Council in the last 12 months. 
These points will be embedded into normal practice to minimise the risk of 
Employment Tribunal claims being lodged and to support the Council in its 
defence of claims when they are made. 

2. Recommendation/s

2.1. Staffing Committee is asked to note the contents of this report and provide 
feedback. 

3. Reasons for Recommendation/s

3.1. The experiences of Human Resource services and Legal Services have 
been combined within this report to provide information that will be 
considered to both minimise the risk of future Employment Tribunal claims 
and to potentially place the Council in a stronger position in its defence of 
any future claims. 

4. Background

4.1. In the last 12 months, the Council has handled six employment tribunal 
claims from former and current employees. These are time consuming and 
costly to defend as well as having the potential for negative reputational 
impact for the Council. 

4.2. Of these six employment tribunal claims, one case was found in the 
Council’s favour, two cases were settled, one was withdrawn by the 
applicant and the other two are on-going. 



OFFICIAL

4.3. The total external legal costs associated with these employment tribunal 
claims are £63,400 to date. There is likely to be additional costs associated 
with the two on-going cases. 

4.4. At the conclusion of each Employment Tribunal case, a review has been 
undertaken to determine lessons learnt to improve the Council’s position to 
reduce claims and to successfully defend future Employment Tribunals.

5. Overview of Lessons Learnt

5.1.This is an overview of the lessons learnt to date resulting from a review of the 
six Employment Tribunals and a summary action plan is attached at Appendix 
1.

5.1.1. Policy and Procedure

5.1.1.1. The Council’s HR procedures must be adhered to. These reflect 
best practice and legislative requirements and all such policies 
undergo review on a scheduled basis or sooner if there are 
legislative changes prior to the scheduled review. 

5.1.1.2. A number of HR policies and procedures provide a right of appeal 
e.g. grievances, disciplinary and dismissal. This right of appeal 
should be consistently recognised in all cases. 

5.1.1.3. The timescales set out within the procedures should be consistently 
adhered to. Where this is not possible, updates and reasons should 
consistently be provided to the employee on a regular basis so they 
are clear that progress is still being made and have an indication of 
the likely time frames for conclusion. 

5.1.2. Resources

5.1.2.1. There should be consideration given to training more internal 
investigators and the appropriateness of  the appointment of 
external investigators. For example, it may by beneficial to appoint 
an in-house HR investigator for more lengthy/complex cases due to 
their relevant training, familiarity with the Council’s policies and 
procedures, access to required officers and resources and 
likelihood to work within agreed timeframes. 

5.1.2.2. Legal input should be consistently sought at an early stage if there 
is any uncertainty about the status of a matter; for example if it is 
not clear whether a matter raised is a grievance or a potential 
whistleblowing matter. 

5.1.2.3. Through continued good working relationships between Human 
Resources and Legal Services, on-going dialogue about cases can 



OFFICIAL
3

ensure that Legal Services are involved at the appropriate stage of 
a case. 

5.1.3. Training

5.1.3.1. Investigation training should be provided to all officers undertaking 
investigations in relation to allegations/issues under the Council’s 
Disciplinary, Grievance and Dignity at Work procedures. 

5.1.3.2. The Wider Leadership Team should be provided with 
whistleblowing training, guidance on the difference between 
whistleblowing and grievance matters and the protected status of 
whistleblowers. 

5.1.3.3. This training should also be provided to the HR Delivery team to 
ensure they are well positioned to highlight matters that may be 
whistleblowing as opposed to greivance and the need to seek legal 
advice and pass to internal audit at the earliest opportunity.

5.1.4. Oversight and Good Practice during Investigations

5.1.4.1. Commissioning Managers

5.1.4.1.1. Investigations are commissioned by an appropriate senior 
manager, known as the commissioning manager. The 
commissioning manager needs to:

5.1.4.1.2. Provide oversight to an investigation through clear terms of 
reference with defined roles and responsibilities to ensure that all 
issues are investigated. The terms of reference should be 
agreed with Human Resources. 

5.1.4.1.3. Ensure that there are arrangements in place to store key 
documents including email retention to support the investigation and 
any subsequent employment tribunal claim.

5.1.4.1.4. Familiarise themselves with policy and procedures to be 
followed.

5.1.4.1.5. Seek HR and legal advice as appropriate. 

5.1.4.1.6. Provide Officers raising grievances with regular progress 
updates and reasons for any delays.

5.1.4.2. Process

5.1.4.2.1. Senior managers should ensure that comprehensive notes are 
taken at meetings with officers raising grievances/whistleblowing 
concerns.  It is good practice to take a note taker to the meeting. 



OFFICIAL

5.1.4.2.2. Officers should be offered the right to be accompanied to these 
meetings even if it is not a formal process.

5.1.4.2.3. Terms of reference should provide clarity in relation to grievance 
and whistleblowing allegations.

5.1.4.2.4. There needs to be clarity of roles and responsibilities in 
whistleblowing matters.

5.1.4.2.5. Consideration needs be given to email access and storage for 
documents in relation to cases whereby information is readily 
accessible for disclosure in Employment Tribunal Claims; this 
needs to be relevant with appropriate retention period to give 
due consideration to GDPR requirements.

5.1.4.2.6. Where possible, there should be one HR representative handling 
a case to have oversight of all issues raised relating to an 
individual employee. 

5.1.4.2.7. Ensure follow-up of actions; this is best achieved through a dual 
approach between the manager and HR representatives so 
there is clarity about what is/not being responded to. 

5.1.4.2.8. There needs to be ownership of the grievance or disciplinary 
process by the commissioning manager to ensure that all 
documentation is provided to the claimant in good time before a 
hearing and to allow them the chance to provide documents.

5.1.4.2.9. Ensure recommendations from investigations are carried out 
and/or reviewed and recorded so that it is clear that they have 
been addressed. 

5.1.4.3      Disclosure arrangements

5.1.4.3.1 Legal Services to review the arrangements and practices for 
disclosure of documents for Employment Tribunals, to ensure 
timely disclosure that supports file preparation.

5.1.5. Future Actions 

5.1.5.1. As part of the overall HR policy review, the appropriate 
procedures and guidance will be be reviewed to capture lessons 
learnt.

6. Implications of the Recommendations

The implications of the recommendations from the report are:

6.1. Legal Implications



OFFICIAL
5

6.1.1. The implementation of the actions from the lessons learnt from recent 
Employment Tribunals will ensure that the Council is; 

6.1.1.1. In a good position to successfully defend claims through 
Employment Tribunals; and 

6.1.1.2. At a reduced risk of receiving employment tribunal claims. 

6.2. Finance Implications

6.2.1. Failure to address lessons learnt could lead to increased legal costs for 
external legal advice and representation as well as increased cost that 
may be incurred due to settling or losing Employment Tribunals.   

6.3. Policy Implications

6.3.1. The policy implications will be incorporated into the overall HR policy 
review with on-going review to ensure legal compliance and in 
recognition of best practice. 

6.4. Equality Implications

6.4.1. There is no Equality Impact Assessment required for this report. All of 
the revised HR Policies and Procedures include an Equality Impact 
Assessment. 

6.5. Human Resources Implications

6.5.1. The policies, procedures and accompanying management guidance 
need to be reviewed to reflect the lessons learnt from the experience of 
recent Employment Tribunal Claims. 

6.5.2. Appropriate investigation training should be organised to include 
employment law, best practice and the Council as a complex 
organisation. 

6.5.3. The HR Delivery Team must embed the lessons learnt in their everyday 
interaction and support to managers and their services. 

6.6. Risk Management Implications

6.6.1. There are risk management implications of not acting on the lessons 
learnt from experiences from Employment Tribunal claims such as 
increased grievance and Dignity at Work complaints, the cost of not 
being able to adequately defend the Council’s position in an 
Employment Tribunal as well as the potential reputational damage. 

6.7. Rural Communities Implications

6.7.1. There are no direct implications for rural communities.



OFFICIAL

6.8. Implications for Children & Young People/Cared for Children 

6.8.1. There are no direct implications for children and young people.

6.9. Public Health Implications

6.9.1. There are no direct implications for public health.

7. Ward Members Affected

7.1. There are no wards affected by this report. 

8. Consultation & Engagement

8.1. Any changes to HR Policies and Procedures are subject to agreement with 
the Council’s recognised trade unions. Regular meetings are in place as 
part of the HR Policy Review currently being undertaken. 

9. Contact Information

9.1. Any questions relating to this report should be directed to the following 
officer:

Name: Sara Duncalf 

Job Title: Acting HR Business Partner 

Email: sara.duncalf@cheshireeast.gov.uk 

mailto:sara.duncalf@cheshireeast.gov.uk


OFFICIAL
7

Appendix One: Summary of Actions

Action Detail Responsible By When
1. Implement training for internal 

investigators and senior 
managers.

Regarding appropriate procedures for 
commissioning managers and investigators.
Regarding whistleblowing/ grievance 
differences and processes including the role 
of the Legal team.

Head of Strategic HR. March 2019

2. Ensure policy and procedure is 
updated, clear and understood.

Updated to incorporate learning, to show 
timeline and actions for commissioning 
managers and all involved including the role 
of HR, documentation requirements and 
clarity of actions.

Head of Strategic HR. March 2019

3. Establish agreement for 
availability of emails and 
documentation.

Access of emails and documents required in 
Employment Tribunals must align with 
GDPR requirements.

Head of Strategic HR and 
Director of Legal 
Services and Monitoring 
Officer.

March 2019

4. Establish quality assurance. Establish a method to ensure 
recommendations from investigations are 
reviewed and addressed.

Head of Strategic HR and 
Director of Legal 
Services and Monitoring 
Officer.

March 2019

5. Review disclosure 
arrangements.

Review practices to ensure timely disclosure 
to support file preparation.

Director of Legal 
Services and Monitoring 
Officer.

March 2019




	Agenda
	4 Minutes of Previous meeting
	5 HR and Health and Safety  - Q3 Update Report
	People Plan 2018-20
	appendix 2 Attendance management action plan

	6 Brighter Future Together (Culture) Programme Update
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5

	7 Pay Policy Statement 2019/20
	Pay Policy Statement 19.20

	8 Mutually Agreed Resignation Scheme (MARS) - Review of Programme for June 2018 Leavers
	9 Employment Tribunals - Overview of Lessons Learnt

